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          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Welcome to the

          3  Education Committee. I am joined this morning by

          4  Council Member Robert Jackson from Manhattan, and

          5  Council Member Helen Foster. As you can probably

          6  tell, there are multiple hearings going on at this

          7  moment. Most Council members are on five or six

          8  committees, so people will be coming in and out. I

          9  suspect we will be joined by five or six more of my

         10  colleagues relatively soon.

         11                 In addition to this oversight hearing

         12  on the topic of teacher recruitment and retention,

         13  we also have a vote scheduled on a resolution having

         14  to do with the Campaign for Fiscal Equity, so we

         15  will have to recess at a certain point, not an

         16  official recess, but take a moment out to vote.

         17  We've already had a hearing on this particular

         18  topic. So when more of my colleagues arrive we will

         19  do that.

         20                 This is the second of three days of

         21  hearings on the topic. We began with an evening

         22  Wednesday night of a hearing that was specifically

         23  designed for teachers. As you can imagine, for most

         24  teachers it's quite difficult to come during the

         25  day, which is why we're particularly appreciative
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          2  that we have some teachers testifying today, but

          3  this was an opportunity without calling specific

          4  witnesses, just to hear from teachers who had

          5  concerns. And as I said yesterday, each and every

          6  one of them was passionate about their commitment to

          7  children and their love for teaching and that came

          8  across very clearly.

          9                 They also discussed everything from

         10  irritants to, you know, very deep concerns about the

         11  bureaucratic hurdles involved in getting their

         12  licenses, not getting paid on time, not having paper

         13  towels and soap. The concerns and complaints range.

         14                 They also talked to us about, you

         15  know, we had teachers who had left the system

         16  because of their profound unhappiness with the level

         17  of support they were offered, and we had teachers

         18  who stayed despite varying levels of support.

         19                 Yesterday during the day we tried to

         20  get a better handle both from a centralized

         21  perspective, a district perspective, from a

         22  principal's perspective and also from schools of

         23  education what is involved in recruiting and

         24  retaining teachers. And I need to state once more

         25  for the record, that although we began preparing for
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          2  this hearing about a month ago, we have not received

          3  absolutely critical information from the Department

          4  of Education that one would need to do our Charter

          5  mandated oversight, and I have had high level

          6  discussions with the DOE that we can't continue in

          7  this vain and we have been promised that we will get

          8  certain pieces of information we requested.

          9                 The types of things we were

         10  interested in, just to give you an example of that,

         11  we wanted to understand retention rates by district

         12  and by schools.

         13                 We also wanted to understand

         14  retention rates by subject area. Is it harder to

         15  retain teachers and science and bilingual education,

         16  as it is in English and history. We also wanted to

         17  know how much is being spent on recruitment and in

         18  what ways.

         19                 We also wanted to know how much is

         20  being spent on the various alternative certification

         21  methods if we're going to properly allocate

         22  resources, and as you probably know, this Council

         23  provides, in a negotiated budget with the Mayor,

         24  about 50 percent of the education budget. We provide

         25  5 billion, the State provides 5 billion and the
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          2  federal government provides 2 billion. So, when we

          3  allocate resources we want to know that those

          4  resources are ultimately benefitting children, and,

          5  so, we have to know where the money is going, and

          6  none of that information did we have before the

          7  start of this hearing.

          8                 What we got from the DOE was vacancy

          9  rates. Well, vacancy rates doesn't tell you if the

         10  vacancy is occurring because of retirement, because

         11  of teacher migration, because of attrition, all of

         12  the very basic pieces of information and as, you

         13  know, is usually the case with the Department of

         14  Education, it's hard to know whether the bureaucracy

         15  just hasn't been able to get you the information or

         16  they don't have the information, and it's always a

         17  guessing game to figure out, and it's not as if even

         18  the high level people at DOE know who has this

         19  information. So, we're hoping to get that in the

         20  very near future, and it certainly will inform our

         21  report.

         22                 For all of our invited witnesses, I

         23  wanted you to know that we're operating a little bit

         24  with our hands tied behind our backs, because we're

         25  not in the field of teacher recruitment and
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          2  retention and it was my intention to get the

          3  Committee members this information so that when you

          4  came we could ask you the intelligent, you know,

          5  questions, and to kind of further our knowledge.

          6                 So, I apologize for spending quite so

          7  long on that point, but I think it's very important

          8  for our witnesses and the members of this Committee

          9  to understand that that information was requested

         10  and has not been received.

         11                 Let me begin.  Our first panel is on

         12  the Challenges of Retention, and we are very

         13  fortunate to have Richard Ingersoll, from the

         14  Graduate School of Education, University of

         15  Pennsylvania, an institution I have a certain

         16  fondness for, since I went there. Karen Zumwalt, a

         17  Professor at Teachers College, Columbia University.

         18  John Lo, a teacher from IS 131, and Monica George,

         19  the principal from Adam Clayton Powell Jr. School.

         20                 So, if you could come up to the

         21  panel, I would ask that you restate your name and

         22  your affiliation for the record, because we make

         23  transcripts of the hearing and that is distributed

         24  to members of the Committee, as well as we look that

         25  over when we are writing our report.
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          2                 So, welcome. It's a little

          3  counter-intuitive, the light has to be off for the

          4  microphone to be on.

          5                 So, perhaps we could begin in the

          6  order in which I called you.

          7                 And if I could just ask you, we've

          8  asked the witnesses to keep their remarks to five

          9  minutes. We do have a lot of questions and there

         10  will be opportunities to elaborate.

         11                 We usually have a clock, but for some

         12  reason we don't. The electrical is not working,

         13  okay.

         14                 So, Professor Ingersoll, if you could

         15  begin, that would be great. And thank you for being

         16  here. You have to push the button so the light is

         17  off.

         18                 DR. INGERSOLL: Oh, here we go, okay.

         19  I'm Richard Ingersoll. Thank you. I'm a professor at

         20  the University of Pennsylvania, a former high school

         21  teacher, and over the past decade I've been doing a

         22  lot of research in the national picture on teacher

         23  supply and demand issues, and I was asked to come up

         24  and talk to summarize briefly what the data tell us

         25  about this thing called teacher shortages, which of
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          2  course has been very much with us.

          3                 Conventional wisdom goes like this,

          4  as we've all heard many times we have this crisis,

          5  this teacher shortage crisis, it's due to two main

          6  things: we have increase in student enrollments, we

          7  have increase in teacher retirements. These two

          8  demographic things are hitting. Schools can't get

          9  qualified people, and student performance suffers.

         10                 When we look closely at the data,

         11  however, perhaps unfortunately this conventional

         12  wisdom is a case of wrong diagnosis and wrong

         13  prescription.

         14                 The prescription generally is that

         15  let's bring in more bodies, and, so, we have dozens

         16  of interesting teacher recruitment initiatives. I'm

         17  not quite sure what you have here in New York City

         18  but we have Troops to Teachers and Teach for America

         19  and Alternative Certification and housing assistance

         20  and signing bonuses and et cetera, et cetera, across

         21  the nation.

         22                 The data tell us that alone these

         23  will not solve the problem. What do the data tell

         24  us? It is certainly true enrollments have gone up

         25  over the last 15 years. It is certainly true teacher
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          2  retirements have gone up. It's certainly true that

          3  large number of schools have difficulty filling all

          4  their spots. That's clear.

          5                 But the data tell us the problem

          6  really isn't so much that we have this shortage in

          7  the sense of two few bodies being produced. A supply

          8  side problem. In fact, we produce more than enough

          9  teachers in the nation every year. The problem

         10  rather is that we have too many bodies prematurely

         11  leaving. The problem isn't shortages, the problem is

         12  turnover.

         13                 The data tell us that teaching is a

         14  relatively high turnover occupation compared to

         15  many. The term we'll us is a revolving door, to sort

         16  of describe this situation. And it has really little

         17  to do with gray hair and retirement, that's only a

         18  small piece. Indeed, most of the teacher turnover

         19  happens within the first five years.

         20                 Why is this distinction important

         21  between shortages and turnover? It's important when

         22  we come to the solutions. Everybody believes we have

         23  the supply side shortage problem and the solution is

         24  bring more bodies in, recruitment.

         25                 Some of these initiatives are quite
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          2  expensive. But they won't work. In plain terms we

          3  can bring in thousands of new people, but if we lose

          4  40 to 50 percent within the first five years, and

          5  that's what the data tell us, where are we?

          6                 The image that I always liked is,

          7  pouring in the bucket with holes in the bottom. You

          8  have to just keep pouring all the time just to keep

          9  up.

         10                 So, how do we plug some of those

         11  holes?

         12                 Four things stand out nationally. I

         13  suspect they may also be true for the City.

         14                 First of all, salaries. No surprise

         15  here, schools with lower salaries have higher

         16  turnover rates, have more of the so-called

         17  shortages. But salaries are not the only, or even

         18  the primary thing, and that's important to

         19  acknowledge because this is a large occupation and

         20  raising everybody's salaries just a little is a big

         21  ticket item.

         22                 Three other things: Student

         23  discipline problems. Schools with more student

         24  discipline problems have higher teacher turnover,

         25  claim they have shortages.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 Now, sometimes people throw up their

          3  hands at this and they say, well, what can you do

          4  about student discipline problems, it's a societal

          5  problem, a breakdown of the family - perhaps all

          6  true.

          7                 The data also tell us, though, that

          8  schools dramatically differ in how well they handle

          9  and cope with student discipline problems, and

         10  property is not the only issue here by any means.

         11                 Schools that do a better job keeping

         12  a handle on it, and backing the teachers, have less

         13  teacher turnover.

         14                 Third thing is, support particularly

         15  for new teachers. This is everything from supplying

         16  enough chalk, that was mentioned earlier, to backing

         17  teachers up with discipline problems to mentoring in

         18  assistance for new teachers.

         19                 This traditionally has been something

         20  of a sink or swim occupation, the principal gives

         21  you the key to the room, bye-bye, good luck, you're

         22  on your own. Some swim, some sink.

         23                 Schools that have more assistance for

         24  newcomers have less turnover, have less so-called

         25  shortages.
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          2                 And the fourth one, how much say

          3  teachers have in the key decisions that affect their

          4  jobs. Some buildings are very top down, it's a

          5  command structure, others are far more of a

          6  collegial, kind of shared decision-making structure,

          7  the latter have dramatically lower turnover rates,

          8  while the suburban/urban, large/small,

          9  private/public, et cetera.

         10                 Now, the data do not tell us the

         11  change in any of these four things will be easy by

         12  any means. Indeed, they'll be very, very difficult

         13  to do in some cases.

         14                 The data simply say that if we

         15  improve some of these working conditions, we will

         16  dramatically lower the rates of the relatively high

         17  rates of the teacher turnover in the nation and also

         18  in the City hopefully that will slow down the rate

         19  at which the door revolves. It means that principals

         20  and personnel people have to do less constant,

         21  constant hiring, advertising, interviewing, hiring

         22  and it will do a lot to undermine the so-called

         23  teacher shortages.

         24                 Thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you. I
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          2  thought we had been joined by another colleague but

          3  maybe not.

          4                 Karen Zumwalt, welcome.

          5                 DR. ZUMWALT: Karen Zumwalt, I am a

          6  Professor at Teachers College, Columbia University,

          7  and I have been a teacher educator at Teachers

          8  College and also at Smith College, and I have been a

          9  middle school teacher and inner city school in

         10  Cleveland and also in a district in suburban

         11  Chicago, and Chicago wouldn't certify me.

         12                 I think I've been asked to address

         13  three questions. The biggest, I think the biggest

         14  challenge, retention challenge faced by a large

         15  district like New York City that hires so many new

         16  first-year teachers, many of whom are only partially

         17  certified, is two things: One is to provide support

         18  for all teachers at the level the need to teach

         19  well, and to grow professionally. If you don't, they

         20  will leave.

         21                 And, secondly, to distinguish which

         22  of these teachers should be retained. To have a goal

         23  of high retention is inappropriate if you don't look

         24  at individual teacher performance.

         25                 I think the data that you tried to
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          2  get earlier is very important, to have current New

          3  York City data. The data Richard and I are speaking

          4  from mostly are national data, and some local other

          5  school data.

          6                 I think that national data would be

          7  helpful to you, but you need to think of some of the

          8  -- and it would be helpful in many ways to think of

          9  distinctions and get a comparison group, but you

         10  need to be very careful when you look at that.

         11                 For instance, the annual teacher

         12  turnover rate you heard is 30 percent. Well, you

         13  have to unpack that, and basically more than half of

         14  those are what we call switchers, people who change

         15  teaching assignments within the same school.

         16                 A quarter are what we call movers,

         17  people who move from one school to another school in

         18  the district, or to another school out of the

         19  district or even out of state.

         20                 And 20 percent are what we call

         21  leavers, and that ends up being about, nationally

         22  about six percent of the teacher population

         23  annually, but they are temporary leavers and there

         24  are permanent leavers. More than half of people who

         25  are classified as leavers return to teaching after
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          2  taking some kind of break.

          3                 You also have to look at as I think

          4  you mentioned earlier, what the reasons are that

          5  people left. Are they involuntary? Which are

          6  nationally about a third, it is estimated about a

          7  third are involuntary, or are they voluntary? About

          8  two thirds. And I don't have to quote Ingersoll

          9  here, because he's already here to do it.

         10                 My second question was: Are people

         11  who are prepared in alternate route versus a

         12  traditional, I think you used the word stream, more

         13  likely to be retained?

         14                 Obviously, this is an empirical

         15  question, and then I wish I could give you

         16  definitive data on that, but the research is mixed,

         17  it's non-conclusive, but it generally indicates that

         18  those who have been prepared traditionally stay

         19  longer or there is no difference, and there are many

         20  reasons for the problems in the research data.

         21                 One is the definition of alternate

         22  route. It varies. It varies by state, it varies by

         23  year.

         24                 A second is that studies that compare

         25  alternate route versus traditional and don't
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          2  differentiate those groups by things like age,

          3  gender, race, ethnicity, SES, teaching experience,

          4  school differences, location, school

          5  characteristics, elementary versus secondary,

          6  different subjects as you mentioned earlier, and

          7  also the collection of data over time. Retention

          8  rates after two years look very different than

          9  retention rates after four years, after ten years.

         10                 Conceptually there are reasons why

         11  you would think the traditionally prepared would

         12  have higher retention rates, and I detail those in

         13  my statement, but there are also reasons why you

         14  would expect that alternate route people have higher

         15  retention rates, and I talk about those in my

         16  statement.

         17                 My last question was: Most teachers

         18  from alternate routes are placed in high needs

         19  schools; does this increase the likelihood that they

         20  will leave? And should this process be changed, and

         21  are we setting up new teachers for failure?

         22                 National data indicates that high

         23  need schools have a higher proportion of all kinds

         24  of first year teachers, inexperienced teachers, et

         25  cetera.
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          2                 Predictably they have higher

          3  attrition rates. It's not logical that we do that,

          4  but we do, and I'll end there.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: As soon as

          6  Council Member Jackson returns, we can start the

          7  vote.

          8                 But Mr. Lo, why don't you proceed.

          9  Thank you for being here. We're particularly

         10  appreciative, because I know we're interrupting your

         11  day and we do that hesitantly but we're very glad

         12  that you were able to join us.

         13                 MR. LO: My name is John Lo, and I am

         14  a third-year ESL teacher in MS 131 located on the

         15  corner of the east side, Lower East Side, and the

         16  boundary of Chinatown.

         17                 I'm here to talk about my experience

         18  as a teacher intern which led to the retention of at

         19  least one teacher here.

         20                 About six years ago I had a surprise

         21  phone call from a friend and she had told me about a

         22  program which pays a couple hundred dollars a week,

         23  pays for six credits of your undergraduate study,

         24  and allows you to leave work at the rate of two and

         25  a half hours earlier every week, and which includes
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          2  health insurance. I later found out that this was

          3  called the Career Step Ladder Program.

          4                 At that time I was the director of an

          5  after school program in Queens, and nothing could

          6  compare to what was being offered on the table. The

          7  program I entered was called BPS, which stands for

          8  Bilingual Pupil Services, which is now part of the

          9  Central Board of Education.

         10                 BPS started out as an interview and

         11  was focused on serving the needs of English language

         12  learners. At that time it was purely to service

         13  elementary schools with bilingual classes.

         14                 My professional title was

         15  paraprofessional, but my job title was teacher

         16  intern. As a rookie teacher intern, I was given

         17  professional staff development workshops, which

         18  included classroom discipline, hands-on science,

         19  positive reinforcement, innovative map strategies,

         20  ESL techniques, which I am now using, and

         21  facilitating cooperative learning.

         22                 I was placed under the mentorship of

         23  six veteran teachers at BPS who were called "field

         24  instructional specialists." They brought real

         25  classroom teaching techniques to our workshops and
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          2  every month BPS would also hire guess speakers to

          3  provide special workshops in technology, culture and

          4  music.

          5                 With the mentioned above, my job was

          6  to service a select group of six to eight students

          7  with the mentoring and partnership of a classroom

          8  teacher.

          9                 I was sent to PS 2, and throughout my

         10  three-year tenure I was able to provide instruction

         11  to the second, third and fifth grade while trying

         12  out brand new strategies previously learned at the

         13  workshops.

         14                 I was held accountable for three

         15  lessons a day by a group. I was to track their

         16  progress through portfolios, journals, quizzes and

         17  with the help of my mentoring teacher I was allowed

         18  to make all the mistakes a rookie teacher couldn't

         19  afford.

         20                 Near the end of my second year of

         21  training, BPS gave me four workshops on how to

         22  produce a classroom portfolio.

         23                 I was able to compile and create a

         24  professional produced binder of what I had done as a

         25  teacher intern.
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          2                 The portfolio was a tool used in all

          3  of my interviews which really impressed my

          4  interviewers.

          5                 My first year as a teacher was not as

          6  hard compared to all of my colleagues. I had already

          7  been trained and seasoned in the classroom. I was

          8  not as nervous, I wasn't lost.

          9                 Having received training boosted my

         10  confidence, I have never doubted the career I chose.

         11  I never felt teaching wasn't for me.

         12                 I truly believe that all college

         13  students who want to be teachers should receive the

         14  same training and support before entering the

         15  classroom to ensure the retention of teachers.

         16                 New teachers are stressed out,

         17  overworked and do not receive the support necessary.

         18  The reality is that more money needs to be spent on

         19  expanding mentorships. To retain teachers, more

         20  money needs to be spent on programs similar to the

         21  ones that I went through but beyond the scope of

         22  bilingual education.

         23                 Without the training at Bilingual

         24  People Services, I would not feel the security I

         25  have as a teacher today.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 And you've provided sort of a perfect

          5  seguay to our vote, because we are voting on a

          6  resolution calling on the Mayor to submit an amicus

          7  brief in support of the Campaign for Fiscal Equity,

          8  and members of this Council and this Committee

          9  strongly believe that while of course we have to

         10  spend the money we have as efficiently as possible,

         11  we are not spending nearly enough to provide a sound

         12  basic education, and I want to compliment the work

         13  of Council Member Bill Perkins and Council Member

         14  Robert Jackson, also Council Member Yassky, who is

         15  not here, are the prime sponsors of this resolution.

         16  We are not only calling on the Mayor to submit an

         17  amicus brief, but this Committee and this Council is

         18  also of course submitting an amicus brief in support

         19  of the plaintiffs. And one of the plaintiffs, the

         20  lead plaintiff, is Council Member Jackson, who is

         21  here.

         22                 If Council Members would like to say

         23  a brief word -- we've also been joined, I'm sorry,

         24  by Council Member John Liu from Queens and Council

         25  Member Leroy Comrie. We are going to try and briefly
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          2  interrupt the hearing for the vote.

          3                 So, I just wanted to give Council

          4  Member Perkins and Council Member Jackson an

          5  opportunity to say a few words.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

          7  very much, Chairwoman Moskowitz, and I want to thank

          8  the Committee also for taking up this matter.

          9                 I'm pleased that the Council is going

         10  to be joining with the Campaign for Fiscal Equity

         11  with regard to an amicus brief, and I am hopeful

         12  that our Mayor will also unite in that way as well.

         13                 Clearly, an eighth grade education is

         14  not enough, and we don't want in any way in this

         15  jurisdiction to suggest otherwise. And, therefore,

         16  all of us, especially those of us who represent the

         17  public schools in New York City, need to make sure

         18  that we're on record calling for that type of

         19  support.

         20                 I want to again thank the Chair for

         21  being so expeditious about hearing this matter, and

         22  would again appreciate the support from this

         23  Committee in terms of this particular resolution.

         24  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Council Member
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          2  Jackson.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you,

          4  Madam Chair. I appreciate the opportunity to speak

          5  on this matter.

          6                 Obviously everyone here is very

          7  passionate about education, because we know

          8  education is the gateway to success. If you can't

          9  read and if you can't write, and James Brown has

         10  said it so many decades ago, "without an education

         11  you might as well be dead." I mean, education is the

         12  key. And we all know that this lawsuit that's going

         13  to the Court of Appeals, it's important that we show

         14  unity, and it's important that individuals speak

         15  out. And clearly with the situation where the Mayor,

         16  having now total control of the school system,

         17  having the sole responsibility to appoint his

         18  educational leader, Joe Klein, as I communicated to

         19  all of you, I wrote him a letter saying that he

         20  needs to show the leadership now to ask Albany, to

         21  show Albany that he as a Mayor representing the

         22  entire 8 million people of New York City support CFE

         23  in this quest to have funding adequacy so that our

         24  children will receive, at least give them the

         25  opportunity for a sound basic education.
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          2                 Now, we all know ideally we want all

          3  of them to be successful in whatever they do, but

          4  they at least deserve the opportunity. And, so, I'm

          5  so proud that you've called for a vote on this

          6  particular matter, and I hope that -- that's coming

          7  forth on the 7th; is that correct?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: The amicus

          9  brief is being drafted as we speak. We think that

         10  sometime in mid November we will release it. But

         11  we're going to be voting on the resolution, it will

         12  go to the full Council.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you.

         14  Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         16                 Can we call the roll?

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Moskowitz.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I vote aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Foster.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Jackson.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Liu.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Recchia.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of six in

          6  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

          7  abstentions, the item is adopted. The vote will

          8  remain open, and Council members, please sign the

          9  Committee report. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you. And

         11  Domenic Recchia, Council Member Domenic Recchia from

         12  Brooklyn has joined us. Thank you for being here.

         13                 I wanted to I guess begin with

         14  Professor Ingersoll, and I have questions for all of

         15  you, as I'm sure my colleagues do.

         16                 If I understand you correctly, the

         17  focus on recruitment in terms of policy has perhaps

         18  not been adequately tied to the issue of retention,

         19  and that the focus has been on getting more bodies,

         20  rather than reducing the revolving door problem.

         21                 If I can be reductionist, I realize

         22  it has a lot of complexity to it. And I guess I

         23  wanted to ask you a couple of factual questions and

         24  then a money question.

         25                 You know, you had mentioned shared

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            27

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  decision-making, which may reduce teacher turnover.

          3  You had mentioned how student discipline is handled.

          4  Is there data on school size and its relationship?

          5  Or is that a subset, perhaps, of school discipline?

          6  In other words, there's a movement afoot in New York

          7  that has been for the last, I don't know, ten years

          8  or so, the small high school, it hasn't trickled

          9  down yet to junior high schools, but is there data

         10  on that, on teacher retention and school size?

         11                 DR. INGERSOLL: Yes. Small schools

         12  tend to have fewer discipline problems sometimes,

         13  and also lower turnover rates, but it turns out size

         14  isn't the issue here. It's accounted for by these

         15  other problems.

         16                 In other words, the data tell us that

         17  whether a school is urban, suburban, large, small,

         18  private, public, is less important for the teacher

         19  in turnover and retention as are these working

         20  conditions. Some schools have it a little better or

         21  worse on these working conditions, but they're

         22  really what counts when we line up these things and

         23  look at which one has the biggest relative effect,

         24  it's these working conditions. And they really

         25  account for any kind of impact of size.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Presumably if

          3  a school is large, and teachers get the support that

          4  Mr. Lo described in detail, I mean that sounds like

          5  a very supportive environment and you got excellent

          6  training and the resources were there, your argument

          7  would be that that would be one of the factors that

          8  would lead to better retention rates.

          9                 DR. INGERESOLL: Yes, that's what the

         10  data show pretty inclusively.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay. And I

         12  don't know if this goes outside your expertise, but,

         13  you know, one of our central obligations is to line

         14  policy with resources, and, you know, that to me is

         15  sort of the $64,000 question. How do you take,

         16  assuming you're 100 percent right about everything

         17  you say, how do we take that and figure out what to

         18  do with the money?

         19                 And I was wondering, I realize that's

         20  a very broad question, but in your testimony it's

         21  not as if you were saying, if I understood you

         22  correctly, stop recruiting, because presumably we

         23  have vacancies, we cannot have kids not taught. The

         24  kindergartners have to have a kindergarten teacher.

         25  How do you figure out how to align the resources,
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          2  given your analysis?

          3                 DR. INGERSOLL: You're right, it's a

          4  little bit beyond my research. But, yes, there's

          5  nothing wrong with recruitment. There's nothing

          6  wrong with bringing new blood in. We also want some

          7  turnover, not all employee turnover is bad, some

          8  people shouldn't be there. But high rates of

          9  turnover are very costly. The problem is, if we

         10  spend a lot of effort money bringing in new bodies

         11  and then we lose them, we're sort of further behind

         12  there.

         13                 I mean, what we really need now is

         14  more attention paid to teacher turnover. In fact, I

         15  applaud your focus here. This is so completely new.

         16  As far as I can tell, no one has ever paid attention

         17  to teacher turnover, which had been relatively high,

         18  it's relatively high compared to other occupations.

         19                 The next step is to quantify the

         20  costs. You know, in industry, employee turnover is

         21  taken very, very seriously. Why? The bottom line, I

         22  have colleagues in the business school that spend a

         23  lot of time figuring out these complicated

         24  algorithms to figure out the cost of employee

         25  turnover for insurance industry, this industry,
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          2  that.

          3                 In education I can't see that anyone

          4  has even paid attention to teacher turnover, much

          5  less gotten to the next step. We haven't gotten to

          6  this yet, which is to quantify the costs.

          7                 Some of these are obvious. Just the

          8  cost of advertising, interviewing and hiring and

          9  training, et cetera, but there's all kinds of less

         10  obvious cost, like just the disruption of a child

         11  having three math teachers a year kind of thing.

         12                 But you know, I think the solutions

         13  to both might be the same. If we improve these

         14  working conditions, that both helps your recruitment

         15  and helps your retention.

         16                 I mean, yes, we need to bring in new

         17  blood, but if we retain a lot of people we don't

         18  have to bring in this much new blood.

         19                 I mean, so much of the recruitment is

         20  simply to fill spots that were vacated three months

         21  before.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Just to pursue

         23  this a little further, and I realize it's in -- and

         24  the other panel should feel free to jump in here, if

         25  you have something to say, even though I directed
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          2  the question initially to Professor Ingersoll.

          3                 Of course, we don't have, not being

          4  economists, or academicians, we don't have the

          5  luxury of sort of studying this for four or five

          6  years.  You know, we have a budget that comes up,

          7  this year we seem to be more in the business of

          8  reducing, unfortunately, than, but whether or not

          9  the budget is reduced, we have a very pressing

         10  question of how to allocate the resources with

         11  limited data. So, we know, for example, that the

         12  Office of Recruitment and Retention spends $17

         13  million; what's not clear at all is what that is

         14  spent on and how much is spent at the district

         15  level. You know, no one seems to have quantified.

         16                 So, we're basically forced to drive

         17  blind, as far as I could tell. And I was wondering,

         18  you know, and I'm working hard to try and rectify

         19  that so we're not, but assuming we are driving

         20  blind, can you give us any advice as to where more

         21  specifically to put the dollars?

         22                 I mean, when I hear from Mr. Lo and I

         23  see that level of support, I don't know how much

         24  that cost either, so I'd sort of need to get a

         25  handle on it. But are there specific places where
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          2  there's either it's a no brainer for you where this

          3  you get a really good bang for the buck; is there

          4  any kind of advice like that that you could offer

          5  us?

          6                 DR. INGERSOLL: Well, I would say

          7  salaries and help for new-comers.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I'm sorry,

          9  salaries, and I didn't hear the --

         10                 DR. INGERSOLL: Salaries.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Yes.

         12                 DR. INGERSOLL: Teacher salaries,

         13  that's sort of a no-brainer.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Right.

         15                 DR. INGERSOLL: Raising those. And

         16  also mentoring and assistance for new-comers, which

         17  of course we have, I mean Mr. Lo's case supports

         18  that. I mean, here's a situation where a lot of help

         19  is provided and the school district has been able to

         20  keep a good teacher.

         21                 So, those two things really jump out.

         22  They're both expensive. I'm not good at telling you

         23  how much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay.

         25                 DR. INGERSOLL: I'm not an economist.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Does anyone

          3  want to add anything to that?

          4                 DR. ZUMWALT: I think, when you say

          5  it's an office of recruitment and retention, and you

          6  don't know the budget, I suspect most is spent on

          7  recruitment?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Yes.

          9                 DR. ZUMWALT: Rather than retention.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Yes.

         11                 DR. ZUMWALT: And if you look at the

         12  preparation that he had, versus the preparation that

         13  you're giving people who you are hiring now, there

         14  is a huge gap. You're more likely to retain the

         15  people who have had this kind of graduated intensive

         16  preparation, it includes experience in schools

         17  before they face their first classroom.

         18                 And, so, you know, the teacher fellow

         19  and other programs you have now are giving them a

         20  little more preparation than they had when you just

         21  got people off the street, but from my perspective,

         22  increasing that preparation, so that it perhaps

         23  starts the semester before, when people are in

         24  school and they can go and have these kinds of

         25  practicum internship experiences. I don't know how
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          2  much it costs, it probably costs a lot but I would

          3  think that that would be a good place to put your

          4  money.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: And, of

          6  course, the other thing that concerns us and comes

          7  more from a different hearing, we had a hearing

          8  about a month ago on literacy and specifically on

          9  professional development, and while everybody was in

         10  favor of professional development, they also talked

         11  about good professional development and poor

         12  professional development. So, I mean, it sounds from

         13  what you have said, Mr. Lo, you got a very high

         14  quality -- someone had thought through the program,

         15  they had both a kind of theoretical sense of what

         16  you were trying to accomplish, and also understood

         17  the relationship between theory and practice, I'm

         18  not sure that all of the models of professional

         19  development sound quite as good.

         20                 MR. LO: I believe the implementation

         21  of six veteran teachers, called field instructional

         22  specialists, was very, very important in the process

         23  of training 110 to 120 paraprofessionals per year in

         24  the bilingual education. If this could be

         25  reciprocated into the general education process, I
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          2  think you're going to be able to retain much more.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: No, that makes

          4  sense. And someone yesterday, a woman named Mildred

          5  Hudson, had said that the Central had focused much

          6  more on kind of regional or even national

          7  recruitment and she had emphasized that there also,

          8  in addition to the sort of paraprofessionals, that

          9  the people who are based in New York for kind of

         10  longer term reasons may also stay here and, so, you

         11  may get a bigger bang for your buck if you spend the

         12  dollars where people are not coming in from other

         13  states and so forth.

         14                 So, I think that's something the

         15  Committee definitely wants to look at. We, of

         16  course, have to get the numbers on it. And I also

         17  like your suggestion, that maybe we can learn

         18  something from other fields in terms of how they

         19  study employee turnover to get a sense of how to do

         20  this intelligently.

         21                 Let me stop there. I have a few more

         22  questions, but let me turn the floor over to some of

         23  my colleagues who may have questions.

         24                 We've been joined by Council Member

         25  Oliver Koppell from the Bronx.
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          2                 Does anyone have questions?

          3                 Council Member Jackson.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I apologize

          5  for leaving the room when you were making your

          6  presentation, but as the Chairwoman said, there's a

          7  lot of other things going on and I wanted to make

          8  sure that certain things are in place, as far as

          9  voting and other committees that are going on over

         10  there.

         11                 So, I apologize if it appears as

         12  though I'm talking to people and I'm not doing that

         13  just because I want to talk to them, but I'm talking

         14  about issues that we're, you know, dealing with this

         15  particular morning.

         16                 But in sitting through the hearings,

         17  and you talked about teacher retention and

         18  recruitment, and I said yesterday that there need to

         19  be sort of like a menu in place where the principals

         20  of a particular school and the superintendents of a

         21  district in working in collaboration with the

         22  centralized, have a menu that things that you talked

         23  about like housing assistance and all other things

         24  that are important to retain people once you get

         25  them here. And I don't see that that's in place from
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          2  an organizational point of view, so that will help

          3  to retain teachers in the system.

          4                 Do you have any experience either

          5  around the country or in New York City about whether

          6  or not the network is there? Once we, you know,

          7  spend this $17 million a year to recruit, a system

          8  in place in order to retain the teachers that we

          9  recruit here, because I don't see that happening.

         10  And I see what's happening is that as a result of

         11  the lack of support overall at various levels,

         12  there's so many reasons that people wind up leaving.

         13  Obviously, you know, the lack of organizations, the

         14  lack of respect of teachers in salary and, you know,

         15  parking tickets and all kind of stuff that comes

         16  into play when you're trying to live in New York

         17  City and trying to teach. Do you have any insight on

         18  whether or not programs are put in placed in order

         19  to make sure that these young teachers that are

         20  coming in, new teachers, stay within the system that

         21  have the support networks at the various levels? Can

         22  you comment on that?

         23                 Especially I'm interested in hearing

         24  your perspective around the country, and more

         25  specifically in the northeast, and specifically in
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          2  New York City, if you know any as far as Teachers

          3  College.

          4                 DR. ZUMWALT: I think there are

          5  definitely schools' programs that work hard to

          6  mentor. This is a good example, programs, new

          7  teachers. I don't think they're widespread enough. I

          8  think that there are a lot of teachers who leave

          9  because they come into teaching very idealistic,

         10  caring about the kids the way you explained earlier,

         11  but most people on jobs want to be successful, and

         12  if you don't have the tools because you weren't

         13  prepared, or the resources because you don't have

         14  the working conditions, it's very easy to get

         15  frustrated.

         16                 And if you are fully certified, there

         17  are lots of other choices you can make. If you're

         18  not fully certified yet or prepared, there are other

         19  jobs you can go to.

         20                 So, I think what you're hearing from

         21  all three of us is an emphasis on once you have

         22  people there, whether they be paraprofessionals,

         23  whether they be alternate route teachers, whether

         24  they be new teachers, whether they be teachers from,

         25  moving over from the Catholic schools. What you need
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          2  to do is to have the kind of support that teachers

          3  need to prepare and do well, and that's going to be

          4  different for different people. And it's going to

          5  take talented administrators and supervisors and

          6  colleagues, but it's also going to take money.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I'm sorry,

          8  were you going to? Go ahead.

          9                 DR. INGERSOLL: Well, it's

         10  interesting, the Governor of California recently

         11  issued a press release of a study they had done

         12  showing that in California they had better teacher

         13  retention than other states and they attributed this

         14  to their assistance program for new teachers,

         15  similar in some ways to what Mr. Lo was talking

         16  about, and the idea that this has been the sink or

         17  swim occupation, and, of course, lots of

         18  professions, there's internships, there's induction,

         19  there's support, there's orientation, there's

         20  assistance, and teaching hasn't had that. California

         21  put it in. And indeed the data showed that they were

         22  -- it was correct, California does have better than

         23  average teacher retention rates and they do have a

         24  very strong teacher support system for new teachers.

         25                 So, I mean what was interesting to me
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          2  about that was that it was a bragging point. High

          3  teacher retention was a bragging point. Again, this

          4  has been sort of an issue that I can't see anyone

          5  has ever paid attention to. It's sort of like the

          6  idea of easy come easy go, it's somewhat of an

          7  expendable occupation, predominantly female

          8  workforce.

          9                 So, that's just an example of a state

         10  that's making a big deal about their keeping their

         11  teachers around and has put some money into a

         12  particular kind of support program.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: You know, how

         14  much money did they pump into it, in order to have

         15  the bragging rights so they say. Because it's

         16  important to know what other states and

         17  municipalities are doing to retain, but it's also

         18  important to know if you have any information that

         19  you can share with us as far as -- and I'm sure our

         20  staff is going to look into that; do you have any

         21  cost value?

         22                 DR. INGERSOLL: I don't right with me.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.

         24                 DR. INGERSOLL: But I can help you get

         25  that kind of thing. There's been a lot of
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          2  evaluations of their program, and, you know, like

          3  anything you get what you pay for, and you have

          4  everything from the new teacher meets with someone

          5  for 20 minutes at the beginning of the year and

          6  that's it, all the way over to money is spent to

          7  free up that teacher for part of the day and a

          8  veteran teacher and they meet on an ongoing basis

          9  and try to help this person learn the ropes of the

         10  difficult job of working with youngsters.

         11                 But, yes, I could try to help you get

         12  information on their particular program. I don't

         13  know the cost offhand.

         14                 DR. ZUMWALT: This is not a new issue,

         15  30, 40 years in teacher education we've been asking

         16  to look at what we call the induction years of

         17  teaching. Teaching is one of the only jobs where you

         18  go in day one, minute one, and do the same thing

         19  that the teacher next door who has been there 25

         20  years does.

         21                 And, so, somehow that movement into

         22  teaching, that induction a year, has not happened.

         23  And I think people know about it. I think money is

         24  the big issue, and we just have not been willing to

         25  put the money that's needed behind it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I mean, you

          3  know, the bragging obviously is complicated if we

          4  don't have data on it. No one can brag if we don't

          5  know.

          6                 Now, it seems to me that where people

          7  know is at the school level and sometimes at the

          8  superintendent level. I've spoken to superintendents

          9  who are very proud of their retention rates and they

         10  know that they're doing very well, and they sort of

         11  get it in a way that I think the centralized

         12  bureaucracy has not always gotten it, or at the

         13  principal level where it's sort of obvious to them

         14  that if they're having to hire, you know, 40 new

         15  teachers every year, it's an incredibly disruptive

         16  and difficult undertaking.

         17                 So, my hope is that we can begin to

         18  map out, as my colleague Council Member Jackson

         19  said, best practices and where we have problems.

         20                 I wanted to go back to the issue of

         21  discipline.

         22                 Anecdotally it has been my experience

         23  that that is the single greatest complaint. Well,

         24  what teachers generally tell me is the paper towel

         25  issue irritates them to no end but they're just
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          2  willing to buy their own paper towels and move on.

          3  But in terms of what seems to overwhelm them and

          4  bring them to tears, and it's not even the

          5  existence, it seems, of just the discipline issues,

          6  it's the confusion over the policies. And we had a

          7  very articulate woman who came on Wednesday night,

          8  who told this very moving story of asking how she's

          9  supposed to write up the incidents, and she was

         10  slightly probably too legalistic for the system

         11  because she didn't know what counted as an incident,

         12  and she explained how difficult it was to, you know,

         13  you're not allowed to touch the students so it was

         14  like a very, you know, what happens when a kid

         15  starts hitting another kid? What she was supposed to

         16  do and the amount of time she spent writing up the

         17  incidents, and there didn't seem, you know, in her

         18  other jobs there were sort of employee manuals that

         19  sort of laid out procedures, there weren't really

         20  any procedures but she knew that she had to write

         21  everything up.

         22                 And I was wondering if you have any

         23  more data on, you know, what about the discipline? I

         24  mean, it makes sense that people don't want to teach

         25  in schools where either their own safety is an
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          2  issue, or they're constantly having to intervene.

          3                 What I've heard from teachers is that

          4  one disruptive child can wreck their entire ability

          5  to deal with the 27 other kids, because they end up

          6  spending all their time on this one child, and they

          7  follow all these procedures and then nothing

          8  happens. They're told that the child could be

          9  removed if they fill out all these incident reports,

         10  but then the year comes and goes and the only way

         11  they can get rid of the problem, as it were, is if

         12  the child moves on to another class and then the

         13  next teacher has this problem. I was wondering, is

         14  there any more data that you have on what about the

         15  student discipline problem is an issue, or the

         16  schools that have been able to successfully handle

         17  it, what specifically leads to the higher retention

         18  rate? Or from your anecdotal, or from your

         19  experiences also?

         20                 DR. INGERSOLL: The issue seems to be

         21  how much say and input teachers are given into the

         22  policies and the rules. In other words, what

         23  behavior is okay and what behavior is not okay in

         24  the school. And also how much support teachers are

         25  given when these rules are broken, whether the
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          2  teachers are backed, or whether it's, look, it must

          3  be your problem, you're not a good enough teacher,

          4  the kid is back in your classroom, and the end of

          5  the year the teacher quits.

          6                 So, the key variable here, as far as

          7  I can find is, how much say and input and voice the

          8  teachers have in both what are going to be the rules

          9  here. What's going to be the -- where do we draw the

         10  line between right and wrong in this setting, in

         11  this building? And if the line is drawn in a place

         12  that violates a lot of the teachers standards, and

         13  the job becomes one of putting up with behavior

         14  that's offensive to them in general and personally

         15  offensive, or threatening to them, you're going to

         16  have a lot of turnover.

         17                 So, the issue there is talking to the

         18  teachers and then supporting that, administrative

         19  support. That seems to be what I can find sort of in

         20  the data.

         21                 MR. LO: On a local level, we do need,

         22  as a teacher we do need the support of the

         23  administration. With the support of a strong

         24  administration, teachers feel that they are secure

         25  within their own classrooms. To compliment that,
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          2  professional staff development must take place to

          3  keep a teacher calm and collected in situations like

          4  that. Without that, the teachers do not know what to

          5  do, and any next move could be exactly the move that

          6  is not correct.

          7                 So, once I say again, the outcry is

          8  we need more professional development and real life

          9  situations and not just based on theories.

         10                 DR. ZUMWALT: Student discipline and

         11  classroom management is the number one concern of

         12  people who go through teacher education programs,

         13  too. So, this is just, and I think it's part -- and

         14  in all kinds of schools. I think what happens here

         15  is our least experienced, our newest teachers, our

         16  uncertified teachers are in schools who have larger

         17  challenges, because they are dealing with children

         18  who are our most vulnerable children. And, so, a lot

         19  of these -- teachers have not had the experience,

         20  whether in a student teaching, a practicum, an

         21  internship, to watch experienced teachers handle

         22  these problems. So, I think that that, the

         23  preparation, the actual interaction, and working

         24  with mentor teachers, good teachers, prior to

         25  assuming responsibility for your own classroom is
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          2  critical.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I mean, that

          4  goes to a question that came up at our last hearing,

          5  which is, you know, what are the schools of

          6  education obligated to do, and that distinction

          7  between pre-service and in-service training, and I

          8  wonder if any of you can comment more fully on that.

          9                 You know, on the one hand, we

         10  understand that no matter how good the education is

         11  that a teacher receives, they're not going to be

         12  prepared to face those 28 little children and all of

         13  their individual differences and all of the

         14  potential chaotic environments of schools, et

         15  cetera, et cetera.

         16                 On the other hand, I have heard from

         17  many, many superintendents and principals that

         18  they're hiring people who do not appear to be

         19  adequately trained coming in. They understand that

         20  they have an obligation to do the in-service

         21  training, and it's been a little hard for this

         22  Committee to understand where the problem is, and I

         23  think what makes it particularly hard is that in New

         24  York City we have the benefit that the schools are a

         25  hop, skip and a jump away from the schools of
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          2  education and it often appears as if people aren't

          3  talking to one another.

          4                 Now, there are selective programs

          5  where that's not the case, where some districts have

          6  these, forge these incredible relationships with

          7  schools of education, so they get an overwhelming

          8  number of student teachers, but for large parts of

          9  the City it seems like there is some sort of

         10  disconnect.

         11                 And I was wondering on the retention

         12  front, do you have concrete or specific

         13  recommendations on how to make this more of a

         14  synergy? What should and could the schools of

         15  education be doing, or what, or on the other side of

         16  that, what could superintendents and principals be

         17  doing to have that opportunity to have more student

         18  teachers, or, you know, I've heard complaints, for

         19  instance, from superintendents that reading

         20  instruction, you know that the six credits is really

         21  insufficient to have any knowledge of reading.

         22                 Or another complaint we heard is that

         23  really all common branch teachers need training in

         24  special ed, they need to be able to identify kids

         25  much earlier, and they're not, they're only really
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          2  getting that if they get the kind of professional

          3  development that Mr. Lo, I mean obviously you've

          4  received it in a sort of specific area, that that's

          5  too late, that it should come someone in their

          6  education, and I was wondering if any of you can

          7  talk about that?

          8                 DR. ZUMWALT: You're absolutely right

          9  that no one is ever fully prepared to teach when

         10  they leave a teacher education program. And that's

         11  why I never use the word fully "prepared," I use

         12  fully "certified." And we hope in the best programs

         13  that we are giving them beginning skills, but most

         14  important how to learn from teaching so that they

         15  will constantly grow professionally.

         16                 There is, just like you might

         17  imagine, just like there are differences in schools,

         18  there are incredible differences in quality of

         19  preservice teacher education programs across the

         20  state, across the nation. New York State is trying

         21  hard to improve that. They have, we have to

         22  reregister all our preservice and our in-service

         23  programs and match them to state standards for

         24  teaching children, in terms of the curriculum, which

         25  we have never done before. And also to meet
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          2  standards based on our professional associations,

          3  National Council of English Teachers, et cetera, and

          4  we must all go through a national accreditation

          5  process. So there are going to be changes.

          6                 There is preservice teacher

          7  education, and there's a lack of -- there should be

          8  a continuum preservice and in-service teacher

          9  education, but the reality is in most cases people

         10  go to their preservice program in one place and then

         11  go to their in-service program in another place. And

         12  our in-service programs at most universities are

         13  relatively under-funded, compared to preservice

         14  programs, so we often don't go out and see the

         15  teachers in school, actually in the schools, it's a

         16  matter of getting courses. That is in the process of

         17  being changed.

         18                 As far as the possibility of an

         19  example that might be helpful for the future, the

         20  Carnegie Foundation has given seven institutions,

         21  seven, eight maybe institutions across the country a

         22  large amount of money to have preservice programs

         23  follow up for two years their graduates, and Bank

         24  Street College education is one of those six. So, I

         25  think John Schneider who is the dean there would be
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          2  a good person to talk with.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Do my

          4  colleagues have other questions?

          5                 Was there another comment on that

          6  issue of the relationship between the schools of

          7  education and the New York City public school

          8  system?

          9                 DR. INGERSOLL: And retention --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: And retention.

         11                 DR. INGERSOLL: I think you were

         12  asking.

         13                 Well, yes, you're right, that

         14  pre-employment training of teachers is very mixed,

         15  in many cases it's very poor, and that, the data

         16  tell us that's tied into this problem of teacher

         17  turnover, that poorly prepared teachers are more

         18  likely to leave, that's a pretty solid finding, and

         19  it makes common sense. This really falls in the

         20  State's court in many ways to make the teacher

         21  training and licensing requirement more rigorous.

         22                 This is a tussle. Now, again, I can't

         23  speak for the specifics of New York, but on the one

         24  hand we have this push to upgrade the training in

         25  this occupation, more rigorous requirements, more
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          2  rigorous in college, let's beef up colleges of

          3  education, which traditionally has sort of been in

          4  the low wrung at universities and underfunded, et

          5  cetera, you have that. Side-by-side you'll have all

          6  kinds of these alternative routes to get into the

          7  occupation where basically you can avoid or postpone

          8  or do some end run around some of these tradition

          9  requirements.

         10                 The alternative routes can be very,

         11  very good. It sounds like we have an example of one

         12  right here. But sometimes those become sort of

         13  corner cutting. So, you know, a lot of states have

         14  these same types of reforms being passed

         15  simultaneously, upgrade the requirements, downgrade

         16  the requirements, who knows where the reality ends

         17  up. Partly they say we want to increase the quality,

         18  on the other hand they say we have shortages, we

         19  need to increase the quantity.

         20                 So, I would say that if you improve

         21  that job and improve the training you'll deal with,

         22  that's your quality and quantity problems.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Following

         24  along those lines, you know, it seems like when we

         25  have a problem with quality our impulse is to
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          2  regulate, and it seems like that can also be another

          3  danger that if you regulate your -- if you're trying

          4  to regulate yourself out of a problem, you also

          5  create a lot of flexibility, and I was wondering

          6  from the point of view of the schools of education,

          7  is that really the way to -- do the regulations

          8  really result in higher quality, or do they result

          9  in less flexibility to have sort of intelligence on

         10  the ground decisions about what you need.

         11                 Because ideally, and, again, I am not

         12  professing to be some sort of expert, but ideally it

         13  seems that you would want the schools of education

         14  working very closely, not that they only provide

         15  graduates for the local environment, but to really

         16  understand what the superintendent of District 5

         17  needs, because District 5 may have different needs

         18  than District 2, and that it's not a kind of one

         19  size fits all model.

         20                 Can either of you comment on whether

         21  regulation is going to get us where we want to go?

         22                 DR. INGERSOLL: Sure. There is a

         23  criticism that there is all these barriers to

         24  getting into the occupation that, you know, why

         25  should people have to go to colleges of education,
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          2  why should we have certification, why should we have

          3  licensing, why should we have any of this? If we

          4  could just have a free market, let's let the best

          5  and brightest go right into teaching, and it would

          6  solve the quality and quantity problems.

          7                 Now, this flies in the face of

          8  anything that's done in other occupations. Most

          9  occupations, especially the traditional professions,

         10  have very high bars to get in, and all kinds of

         11  barriers and tests and requirements and license and

         12  certification things. Indeed teaching is notable

         13  because it has usually lower bars and wider gates

         14  than most other occupations, and here it's being

         15  criticized for having too many barriers.

         16                 That's sort of a funny argument in

         17  many ways. I mean, in Pennsylvania to cut hair you

         18  need to take a year-long course and get a license.

         19  So, here we have this occupation, we're working with

         20  our kids, and already it has relatively low

         21  requirements. Certainly this erodes flexibility,

         22  certainly it's bureaucratic, it does all these

         23  things. Not nearly as much as law or medicine or

         24  veterinarian or surveyors or architects or

         25  engineers, incidentally.
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          2                 So, again, my argument would be that

          3  the data say if you want to improve these quality

          4  quantity problems, let's stop cutting corners and

          5  let's upgrade the situation.

          6                 But I should also add a lot of this

          7  falls into the state or federal level and not the

          8  City's. I mean, the requirements to get into this

          9  occupation as in most, those are state level types

         10  of licensing statutes, et cetera.

         11                 DR. ZUMWALT: I think most states have

         12  been relatively flexible with requirements. I know

         13  New York has in terms of making sure that, for

         14  instance, people who don't decide, 19 or 20 year

         15  olds to become teachers can become teachers, I don't

         16  think it's too much to ask somebody who is 28 or 32

         17  or 38 to go through a program that's nine months, if

         18  they're going to change their career, I think our

         19  kids are worth that. And as Richard has said, we

         20  have lots of different requirements for doing other

         21  things in our society that aren't on surface as

         22  important as the education of our children.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Yes. I mean,

         24  it's a little bit of a contradiction because the

         25  teachers complain that maybe if you had a more
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          2  streamlined certification, but this issue of the

          3  certification map has come up and I actually have

          4  not seen a copy of it, but I think someone from the

          5  UFT is going to get me a copy of it, where, you

          6  know, they complain that it's one thing to have high

          7  standards, it's another thing to have a bureaucracy

          8  and maybe that's the distinction that we, you know,

          9  there's nothing wrong with the regulatory framework

         10  if the teacher can get from point A to point B

         11  without having to take time off work and go down to

         12  central.

         13                 Someone yesterday said that they

         14  didn't understand, and this is an issue that we are

         15  going to look into, why LA could turn around the

         16  fingerprints overnight and in New York City it seems

         17  to take anywhere from weeks to months to, you know,

         18  why is that the case? And also in LA apparently it

         19  costs $50, whereas in New York City it costs at

         20  least $80. You know, so there may be small things

         21  that, if this is the case, that you don't, you want

         22  high standards but you don't want all that

         23  bureaucracy.

         24                 I wanted to ask Mr. Lo if you could

         25  speak to the issue of kind of what level of
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          2  preparation you, you know, in terms of getting to

          3  this issue of regulation and how that kind of

          4  affects your life as a teacher, if you could speak

          5  to what is the proper balance in terms of a kind of

          6  a practical perspective; are you glad that you were

          7  asked to meet these certain standards? Are there

          8  standards you're asked to meet? I mean, I get a lot

          9  of complaints from teachers that when they have to

         10  attend workshops at central, they'd be better off

         11  playing Solitare because they're not of a

         12  sufficiently high value because they don't directly

         13  impact instruction. Could you just speak from your

         14  experience?

         15                 MR. LO: The requirements given to

         16  teachers at this point I think are fair. But the way

         17  that it's implemented is unfair.

         18                 When we are asked to go to the

         19  Central Board certifications and we're asking for

         20  help, we seem to be getting the run-around

         21  consistently, something that takes two days to

         22  finish and to complete will take about two months.

         23                 Although the map that's going to be

         24  given to you from the UFT is clear and concise, the

         25  process in doing so is not. There lies in a problem
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          2  which teachers feel frustrated at.

          3                 In addition to feeling the stress I

          4  work with in the first five years of teaching, we

          5  have to go through the run-around at the Central

          6  Board. And that is ideally very frustrating, and

          7  it's just another way to make teachers feel that

          8  they're not being appreciated.

          9                 In more detail, I think that the

         10  requirements also need support, instead of giving

         11  workshops in mass quantities, in terms of maybe

         12  having 100 or 150 people, maybe you might want to

         13  downsize that to about 15 to 20. So, teachers do

         14  have the individual attention, and certainly, as

         15  like a setting like this, we're able to answer the

         16  questions that we feel that need immediate

         17  attention.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: That's

         19  helpful.

         20                 One more question. This was brought

         21  up yesterday, and a number of you mentioned it

         22  today, the notion of teachers experiencing success,

         23  which I think, you know, makes common sense that

         24  anyone in any one profession wants to be successful;

         25  are there any specific policies or policy changes? I
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          2  mean, you spoke broadly about professional

          3  development and support, but can anyone be any more

          4  concrete, because we're in the business of -- you

          5  know, we have a challenging job, you know, of really

          6  coming up with very -- you know, we can't just say

          7  to the Department of Education do professional

          8  development. We have to try and get it to a concrete

          9  level of what policy things we want eliminated, what

         10  we believe works. In terms of this issue of

         11  experiencing success, it seems so critical and

         12  self-evident that that is the case. I was wondering

         13  if anyone could put any sort of meat on the bones in

         14  terms of what exactly that means?

         15                 MR. LO: May I add on some of the

         16  local level?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Sure.

         18                 MR. LO: On the local level I believe

         19  that teachers who come in as PPTs, those are

         20  uncertified teachers who have never received

         21  preservice development, should receive in-service

         22  development with veteran teachers on a team teaching

         23  level. In terms of I was talking about rookie

         24  mistakes, these rookie mistakes can be easily

         25  curbed, as long as you have a veteran teacher there
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          2  to sort of hold your arm and to lead you through the

          3  way. And in team teaching it does not need to take

          4  place over an exorbitant amount of time, but let's

          5  say for about a six-month period or for a one-year

          6  period. That is very, very instrumental, influential

          7  to a new teacher.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So, both

          9  mentoring and team teaching?

         10                 MR. LO: Absolutely.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Is there any

         12  other?

         13                 DR. ZUMWALT: Yes. When I hear someone

         14  say we should have more professional development, I

         15  worry that gets interpreted into these mandatory

         16  one-shot workshop deals which people resent, and

         17  also find not very useful, unless it happens to hit

         18  you in something you're really working on.

         19                 And I think for professional

         20  development to be effective, for people to feel

         21  successful, it has to be site based, and it has to

         22  be individualized, and ideally it has to be what we

         23  call a community of learners, where people all see

         24  themselves as learners, that you can learn from the

         25  other teachers, you can learn from your students,
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          2  and the principal has that kind of attitude.

          3                 But I really do think that new

          4  teachers, whether they're from preservice programs

          5  or whatever, need reduced teaching loads in the

          6  beginning years of teaching, or at least the

          7  beginning semester. And New York State tried to do

          8  that many years ago with the State mentor program,

          9  and they had some very good programs in New York

         10  City through the Teacher Center that did exactly

         11  what you're talking about, but as you know, the

         12  State ran out of money and the program was closed --

         13  or the pilot program were closed down. So, I think

         14  we know how to do it, we just don't have the will

         15  and the money to do it.

         16                 DR. INGERSOLL: Well, here's a

         17  specific done, having to do with the student

         18  discipline issue that doesn't cost money.

         19                 A couple of years ago the State of

         20  Georgia, and it's a state level now, the State of

         21  Georgia enacted a law which made it far more easier

         22  for teachers to have those one or two kids who were

         23  ruining their class removed.

         24                 And of course, you mentioned this

         25  earlier, this is traditionally the biggest complaint
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          2  of teachers and has been for decades, is the student

          3  discipline issue, and if you ask teachers, they say

          4  if you could just remove those couple of kids that

          5  are ruining my class.

          6                 Now, this may not have cost money,

          7  but of course it's very difficult, because of course

          8  education is an entitlement and those students have

          9  a right to an education. So, this was a difficult

         10  law to pass, certainly the state had to provide

         11  other kinds of maybe an alternative program for

         12  these kids. Wildly popular with the teachers,

         13  dramatically helped teacher retention, to allow them

         14  to have some more input in dealing with problem

         15  children, in this case removal, which is sort of a

         16  big step.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Well, that is

         18  helpful. It's the intention of this Committee at a

         19  later point to really focus more specifically on

         20  student discipline. Some of the legislation that's

         21  here in New York that teachers complain about, as

         22  well as the monies that are spent on whether it be

         23  special ed or truancy programs or so forth so that

         24  is helpful.

         25                 This Committee obviously has the
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          2  political will that you're talking about, but, you

          3  know, is a limited player and it's a combined

          4  federal, state and local exercise, in terms of

          5  funding schools, and our big concern is that we may

          6  have finally gotten the opportunity with Mayoral

          7  control to have kind of more rational

          8  decision-making and less of the political blame game

          9  that went on, but at that moment we have a fiscal

         10  crisis and it is very hard to kind of get the stars

         11  aligned in the proper way to really fundamentally do

         12  what I think most educators know needs to be done.

         13                 I thank you very, very much for your

         14  time and for your comments. We hope that we can be

         15  in touch with you. It's the intention of this

         16  Committee to issue a report. Not being the experts

         17  on this subject, we hope we can take advantage of

         18  your knowledge and get you a copy of the draft

         19  report and kind of get your feedback. So, thank you

         20  very, very much.

         21                 We are next going to hear from four

         22  witnesses specifically on the question of resources

         23  available to help retain teachers.

         24                 Suzanne Ort; Hector Calderon;

         25  Christian Simamora; and Aminda Gentile.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Madam Chair,

          3  while they're coming up, I understand there was a

          4  vote taken earlier?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I'm sorry I

          7  was late. What is the vote, please?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: The vote was

          9  on the resolution calling on the Mayor to submit an

         10  amicus brief, and we left the record open.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

         12  Could I be recorded in favor of that?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: You could, if

         14  the roll call person was here. He's coming back up.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So, if you can

         17  bear with us five minutes, I think he should be

         18  upstairs.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: While the

         20  people are gathering --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Sure.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Do we have

         23  any statistical information on the reasons that at

         24  least the teachers give for leaving? Because this

         25  issue of retention seems so important, do we have
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          2  any of that?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Well, as I've

          4  said several times, we don't. Not because we didn't

          5  ask for it, but because the Department of Education

          6  has not provided us with that information.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Do they ask

          8  the question of people when they leave?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: It is not

         10  clear, the scope of their database on this

         11  particular issue, and it doesn't seem to be clear to

         12  the people who work at the Department of Education,

         13  what they know and what they don't know. So, we've

         14  been able to get to the bottom of basically

         15  absolutely nothing thus far.

         16                 We requested this information a month

         17  out, we have repeatedly e-mailed, written letters,

         18  I've spoken to and I've been promised by Diana Lam

         19  and others that they will try and get us this

         20  information, and tell us what they do and do not

         21  know. And as soon as I get that information I will

         22  forward it to members of the Committee. We really

         23  can't write the report without knowing this basic

         24  information.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: What I might
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          2  suggest --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Sure.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And maybe the

          5  information isn't even there, because I'm not sure

          6  that it was collected on a district level, as you

          7  know I was the chairman of the school board, is that

          8  maybe we could mandate, or at least suggest, I don't

          9  know whether we have the power to mandate, that when

         10  teachers leave they be required to fill out a

         11  questionnaire with some of this information.

         12                 I know when I sign off of certain

         13  programs, like I cancelled my subscription to a

         14  particular computer issue, they asked me, why did

         15  you cancel? It's not such a complicated thing. So, I

         16  think we ought to have a question, you know, a going

         17  away questionnaire and ask people why did you leave?

         18  Now, they may not always be honest about it, but at

         19  least there would be some indication.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I think that

         21  is an excellent idea. Before we get to that

         22  discussion, I need to understand what they already

         23  do, what the practice is, and I haven't been able to

         24  get to the bottom of that. But being the tenacious

         25  chair of the Education Committee that I am, I assure
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          2  you that if it exists, I will get it from the

          3  Department of Education, and we will know in the not

          4  too distant future what they do and do not know. But

          5  you're right that there are many practices that are

          6  very common in the private sector world in terms of

          7  tracing this information that may or may not be used

          8  by the Department of Education.

          9                 So, I appreciate the question, and I

         10  am sorry that I haven't been able to provide the

         11  members the most basic information that would be

         12  necessary to do our Charter-mandated oversight.

         13                 Welcome, and thank you very much for

         14  being here.

         15                 If I can ask you to state your name

         16  for the record and your affiliation. Again, the

         17  light has to be off, it's somewhat

         18  counter-intuitive, for the microphone to be on. And

         19  if you could try and limit your remarks to about

         20  five minutes, that would be helpful.

         21                 So, can we begin in the order in

         22  which I called you.

         23                 Suzanne Ort.

         24                 MS. ORT: Hi. My name is Suzie Ort,

         25  and I'm a former New York City public school
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          2  teacher, and I'm currently a professional developer

          3  at Park East High School, in East Harlem.

          4                 I'm wondering if anybody can sort of

          5  signal me as time is running out.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I will.

          7                 MS. ORT: Thank you.

          8                 I was asked to tell a little bit

          9  about my story of coming to the New York City public

         10  school system and sort of leading up to my current

         11  work as a professional developer, and try to

         12  illuminate the problem of teacher retention.

         13                 I was a student, an undergraduate

         14  student at Brown University, where I was enrolled in

         15  the teacher education program, and I was pursuing a

         16  double major in history, which is my content area

         17  and participation in the teacher education program.

         18                 At the beginning of my senior year,

         19  after completing the vast majority of my

         20  undergraduate courses in education, I decided to

         21  drop out of the program and then pick up just the

         22  concentration, like the academic study of education,

         23  rather than teacher preparation program. Mostly

         24  because it seemed that doing student teaching at the

         25  last semester of senior year, while I was trying to
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          2  complete a thesis in history, and basically being a

          3  full-time teacher and enjoying your senior year,

          4  which is sort of, people feel like that's a right

          5  that they've earned after four years of school, it

          6  didn't seem like a viable thing to me, and I knew

          7  that I was returning to New York City where I had

          8  grown up, and I knew that there was this emergency

          9  certification program, and so I knew that I didn't

         10  need to be certified. So, I dropped out of the

         11  program and I completed my degree in education, I

         12  completed my degree in history and I came to New

         13  York several times during the second semester of

         14  senior year to get my fingerprints done, which did

         15  indeed take six months, and to just begin the whole

         16  process, which is really a lengthy process, a very

         17  onerous one.

         18                 So, I came and then I graduated in

         19  the summer of 1989. This is in 1989, I began looking

         20  at schools to teach in, and armed with a roster from

         21  the New York City Board of Education at that time, I

         22  visited every high school pretty much in Manhattan

         23  and the Bronx. And I was looking for a school that

         24  would be structured so that I could be a successful

         25  teacher, and I felt strongly that because I didn't
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          2  have the most valuable part of a teacher preparation

          3  program, the student teaching, although I had all

          4  the courses, I didn't have that most valuable

          5  element, I felt like I need to be in a school that

          6  would support me. And after visiting, you know,

          7  countless schools, and asking to, you know, speak to

          8  a principal or an assistant principal, I found this

          9  one school called the University Heights High School

         10  in the Bronx. It's on the campus of Bronx Community

         11  College, which it's one of the "alternative

         12  schools," articulated alternative in that it

         13  espouses an alternative pedagogy and also an

         14  alternative in the sense that it tends to serve kids

         15  who weren't successful in the regular public

         16  schools, kids who were expelled or had academic

         17  programs, just a history of failure get referred to

         18  University Heights, and the school has sort of taken

         19  it to try things differently since the traditional

         20  way didn't work for them.

         21                 So, I found this school, and I was

         22  hired, and I began teaching there. And it was only

         23  after I left the school that I really realized how

         24  tremendous the support for a new teacher,

         25  particularly one who was basically untrained, were.
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          2  And I think the school level supports is something

          3  you talked about earlier, tend to some extent

          4  mitigate the problems of uncertification, people who

          5  are really uncertified or unprepared to teach.

          6                 In particular, I found four primary

          7  support mechanisms at University Heights. One was

          8  ongoing opportunities to see strong practice,

          9  veteran teachers. People talked about it earlier, I

         10  was part of that mentoring program that has since

         11  been terminated. I was released from one period, one

         12  teaching period a day, and I sat in the classroom of

         13  a mentor teacher, a strong, veteran teacher, and I

         14  just watched. I didn't have any responsibilities,

         15  except to the extent when I initiated them.

         16  Otherwise I just sat there and it was a tremendous

         17  opportunity.

         18                 I was also part of a team of teachers

         19  that was mentioned earlier, and this team of

         20  teachers, we taught common material. We weren't

         21  always in the class together, which is kind of the

         22  expensive element of teaming, but we had a common

         23  planning time, and then we all went off and we did

         24  our lessons, sometimes together, but mostly

         25  separately. But we had planned together, which is a
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          2  real support for a new teacher, to sit in and just

          3  watch that process of how an experienced teacher

          4  plans. And honestly, the experienced teachers tend

          5  to do most of the planning, and I would kind of pipe

          6  in and then take the lesson, and then go off and do

          7  it. So, it really made it one less thing for me to

          8  do and one thing to do with a tremendous amount of

          9  support behind it.

         10                 Another support mechanism was

         11  attention to new teacher issues. That's like the

         12  nuts and bolts things that can really trip you up

         13  when you have 1,000 other things to think about.

         14                 I had a weekly meeting of all the new

         15  teachers at the school. We had lunch with the

         16  principal of the school, and she just asked us, you

         17  know, we brought our food from the student

         18  cafeteria, and we sat there and she asked us, you

         19  know, what are you facing, what are your issues,

         20  what can I do? And we just talked informally. I

         21  found that really, really helpful.

         22                 And the last thing is the principal

         23  was a true instructional leader. She saw her job as

         24  mentoring new teachers, and the whole, all the Board

         25  of Ed requirements about observations of new
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          2  teachers, they're very stringent. I mean, there's a

          3  lot of observation. And in most schools that I have

          4  seen since being a teacher, they tend to be kind of

          5  like slap/dash, people don't really pay attention to

          6  them, they kind of whip out the observations and

          7  then whip out the reports and then they move on, and

          8  she, instead, took them as a real professional

          9  learning opportunity for me, and it was very

         10  deliberate about how she did the observations, what

         11  was her follow-up, how she had me reflect on my

         12  lessons. So, I really felt like her mandated

         13  observations were learning opportunities, and I

         14  think that's pretty rare, but something that could

         15  be rectified without too much legislative issue

         16  stuff.

         17                 So, just in short, in sum of that

         18  element, I think those four support mechanisms

         19  within the school made my first year different from

         20  the usual kind of sink or swim, I learned a lot but

         21  the kids didn't kind of thing, which, you know,

         22  people say all too often, especially the teachers

         23  with the most kids, and that's something we wouldn't

         24  tolerate in the suburbs, people saying, like, well,

         25  the kids didn't learn very much the first year, but
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          2  it was great for me. Okay, getting to the end. Thank

          3  you.

          4                 So, after three years of teaching in

          5  the system, I started to have to look at getting a

          6  master's degree. It's still a requirement that

          7  within five years you must get a master's degree

          8  within the system or else your salary doesn't

          9  increase. And having taken one or two education

         10  classes while I was a teacher, I realized that I

         11  couldn't go as a part-time student and a full-time

         12  teacher, it just wouldn't work for me. I really

         13  wanted to have like a full-time educational

         14  experience.

         15                 So, I enrolled in -- I left the

         16  classroom, and I enrolled in a one-year master's

         17  program at the Harvard University Graduate School of

         18  Education, and when I got there I was totally

         19  intending to return to the classroom. It was not

         20  something that, you know, I had went there to learn

         21  to be an administrator and then, you know, leave.

         22  Well, but as I was there, I found that I really

         23  enjoyed the formal study of education, I liked the

         24  policy perspective, I liked the research methods

         25  that I was learning and sort of the larger picture
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          2  that research provides, and there was a subtle

          3  pressure at the school -- not pressure, but a subtle

          4  sort of undercurrent like you've done your classroom

          5  time and now it's time to kind of move on to being a

          6  policy maker or researcher, sort of as you are

          7  intended to be since you now are a Harvard student,

          8  you know, kind of thing. I mean, that was particular

          9  to that school, I think. I'll probably get killed

         10  for saying that.

         11                 So, I stayed. I enrolled in the

         12  doctoral program. I actually transferred from

         13  Harvard to Teachers College, an institution that I

         14  felt was more practitioner-oriented, and I think

         15  that is true, that TC has more connections with the

         16  classroom. And after completing my doctorate, I'm

         17  almost done, I worked on many different research

         18  projects while I was a student, a doctoral student,

         19  and a lot of different policy, a lot of policy work,

         20  particularly with the State Ed Department, and after

         21  having my own kids I am now not back in the

         22  classroom. I think that there are sort of structural

         23  things that prevent a lot of, there's a lot of

         24  female issues, too, with why people leave, and

         25  people who want to stay at home part-time with their
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          2  kids, it's hard to do that and be a teacher, which

          3  is something I've seen from a lot of my colleagues

          4  who are teaching with me. Most of us started when we

          5  were in our early 20s and now are having children

          6  and you can't be a part-time teacher. There's this F

          7  status thing, but it doesn't really work very well.

          8  Which is something we can go into later.

          9                 So, now I work two days a week as a

         10  professional developer at a high school in East

         11  Harlem, called Park East High School. It's a small

         12  high school, also an alternative school, and I think

         13  the things that I do, the professional development

         14  position, which is not something that is usually

         15  done in the high schools, it's mostly done in the

         16  elementary schools, is really one mechanism that the

         17  system can employ more effectively to provide the

         18  kind of supports that I had at University Heights

         19  for new teachers, in terms of mentoring, in terms of

         20  individualized attention to lesson planning. I'll

         21  stop there.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         23                 Hector Calderon. Oh, Hector is not

         24  here. I'm sorry.

         25                 Christian Simamora?
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          2                 MR. SIMAMORA: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Welcome.

          4                 MR. SIMAMORA: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you for

          6  being here.

          7                 MR. SIMAMORA: Like you said, my name

          8  is Christian Simamora. I'm a third-year fifth grade

          9  bilingual teacher in District 9 of the South Bronx

         10  at CES 53 X, and I was asked to come here and speak

         11  to give a perspective on how we can recruit teachers

         12  right out of college, and also how we can retain

         13  these young college graduates in the profession.

         14                 I came into teaching, not through the

         15  traditional educational program, but rather through

         16  Teach for America, which is a national teacher

         17  corps, and which is under the umbrella of the

         18  Americorps Program, and, you know, basically for me,

         19  what attracted me to the profession, because before

         20  that it had never been a tangible opportunity, was

         21  how Teach for America framed it. They framed it

         22  within the context of national service, personal

         23  challenge and social change. And that was very

         24  attractive for me as a --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I'm sorry,
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          2  there's a lot of noise. Could we keep the noise

          3  down? Thank you.

          4                 I'm sorry. I apologize.

          5                 MR. SIMAMORA: That's all right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Go right

          7  ahead.

          8                 MR. SIMAMORA: Okay.

          9                 So that's what attracted me as a

         10  college senior to consider teaching as a profession,

         11  and I think that's a good seguay into one of the

         12  points I want to make today is that if we want to

         13  recruit college graduates into the profession, we

         14  need to portray teaching as a prestigious

         15  profession.

         16                 What I think often happens is that

         17  teaching is seen for college graduates as sort of

         18  like a temporary zone to be in until they resume

         19  their professional track.

         20                 For example, my own mother keeps

         21  asking me, so what are you going to do next year?

         22  And I keep telling here I'm going to teach next

         23  year. Because for her, I think in her mind, you

         24  know, going to law school, going to medical school

         25  would be the culmination of my undergraduate career,
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          2  not teaching.

          3                 With that said, I think it's

          4  imperative we frame teaching in the context that

          5  displays the uniqueness and the relevance of the

          6  profession.

          7                 For example, the Police Department

          8  has a motto "The City's Finest," and the Fire

          9  Department, you know, they carry the badge of being

         10  "the City's bravest," and when it comes to

         11  teaching, my friends who are going to law school or

         12  medical school or who work in corporate America,

         13  often see me as not really living up to my potential

         14  because I teach, and that attitude reveals a lot

         15  about maybe how the City views teaching in general.

         16                 So, Teach for America, in the way

         17  that they framed it, allowed teaching to be an

         18  attractive possibility for me.

         19                 I think it's also important that we

         20  give incentive to college graduates to come and

         21  teach, and I think that's already begun with loan

         22  deferral programs, as well as free graduate programs

         23  that culminate in a master's degree. And I think

         24  that's important because the salaries that teachers

         25  get, honestly, can't compete with the private sector
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          2  all the time. So, these additional incentives makes

          3  teaching more attractive.

          4                 Now, on the retention front I think

          5  there are two major themes that are important in

          6  order to retain teachers. I'm in my third year, and

          7  presently I'm considering whether I'm going to teach

          8  a fourth year. And two of the things that are very

          9  important for me are, number one, support systems,

         10  which was already mentioned; and number two, how I'm

         11  treated as a professional.

         12                 When it comes to support systems,

         13  what made my first year possible, because it was an

         14  ordeal, needless to say it was very hard, it was

         15  very challenging, was, one, I had an incredible

         16  administration, a principal who appreciated the fact

         17  that I was a first year teacher allowed me the room

         18  to grow, allowed me the room to make mistakes, while

         19  at the same time supporting my initiatives in the

         20  classroom. And also, Teach for America is just a

         21  huge, has a vast array of resources and people that

         22  you can turn to in the case that you come upon

         23  different challenges, which you do on a daily basis

         24  as a first-year teacher.

         25                 In terms of the right to be a

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            81

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  professional, and this is something I feel very

          3  passionate about, being in District 9, District 9

          4  has a lot of schools that are under corrective

          5  action, or on the SURR list, and one thing that I

          6  think can drive new teachers away is a mandated

          7  curriculum or a scripted program.

          8                 The reason I say that is because a

          9  mandated curriculum or a scripted program works on

         10  the implication that the teacher is not capable or

         11  does not have the pedagogical knowledge base to

         12  teach, and, so, therefore we have to script the

         13  program out for you. I know that in my own school,

         14  now that we have an interim principal and now that

         15  we are in corrective action, the superintendent of

         16  District 9 is very adamant about us incorporating

         17  certain elements and certain programs into the

         18  classroom. And that's very frustrating, especially

         19  since I'm in graduate school, and I'm going to

         20  graduate school because of Teach for America but I'm

         21  not allowed to employ the educational theories of

         22  the pedagogical knowledge that I'm learning in my

         23  own classroom.

         24                 In addition to that, I also think

         25  that a teacher needs to be allowed the space in
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          2  which to draw on that pedagogical knowledge I was

          3  talking about, to address the challenges that come

          4  up in a classroom at any point in time.

          5                 So, those two elements together,

          6  support systems which can come in the form of within

          7  the school, and a supportive administration, can

          8  also come from without the school, in terms of

          9  mentor programs and in terms of Teach for America

         10  having its vast resources, and also having teachers

         11  being treated as professionals I think will allow

         12  teachers to want to stay in the profession.

         13                 One more example before I close. I

         14  have a lot of colleagues that work in District 9,

         15  not particularly in my school, and we talk a lot, we

         16  plan a lot, and one of the biggest concerns for a

         17  friend of mine, who is a first year teacher, was

         18  that as a first year teacher, at the end of the

         19  first month in September, he was actually told that

         20  if he did not improve his classroom management, he

         21  would be pulled out of the classroom.

         22                 And this was particularly frustrating

         23  because for him, I mean he was trying the best that

         24  he knew how, and instead of coming to him with

         25  constructive support or criticism, and, you know,
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          2  fostering an environment of support for him so that

          3  he can grow, they were threatening him with taking

          4  him away from the classroom. And the level of

          5  frustration and anger that he experienced was so

          6  high that he considered leaving the profession the

          7  same day.

          8                 So, I think it's important that in

          9  addition to having support systems, we also give new

         10  teachers the room to grow, to grow in their

         11  practice, because nobody comes out of Teach for

         12  America, the Teaching Fellows or even an educational

         13  school knowing how to teach the first year. It's one

         14  of those jobs that you learn on the job.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 Aminda Gentile.

         19                 MS. GENTILE: Yes. Good day. My name

         20  is Aminda Gentile, and I --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Excuse me for

         22  one second. I'm sorry to interrupt. We've been

         23  joined by Council Member Bill DeBlasio from

         24  Brooklyn. Thank you.

         25                 Go right ahead.
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          2                 MS. GENTILE: Okay. I head the UFT

          3  teacher centers, where our mission is helping

          4  teachers succeed in the classroom.

          5                 We know that the new teachers, those

          6  especially within the first five years of their

          7  careers, are the most likely to leave the profession

          8  from everything. And I kept nodding and nodding in

          9  agreement with my colleagues.

         10                 Aside from salary, the main reason we

         11  get is lack of support, and it is a difficult job.

         12  Teachers want help in learning different ways, the

         13  ways students learn - help in developing curriculum,

         14  help with classroom management - and too often they

         15  don't get it.

         16                 They feel isolated. They feel like

         17  they're failing, and then they do quit. And we have

         18  a lot of teachers similar to situations that

         19  Christian talked about that do leave the profession.

         20                 I believe Randi spoke to you

         21  yesterday about some of the problems with

         22  professional development as it is practiced in many

         23  of our schools, but I'm really here to tell the good

         24  story about some of the great things in professional

         25  development that are taking place, and urge you to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            85

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  see that support for new teachers in high quality

          3  professional development is an essential tool for

          4  all teachers. All teachers, not just new teachers.

          5                 The UFT teacher centers offer

          6  systematic, ongoing job-embedded professional

          7  development in 350 of the lowest-performing schools

          8  in New York City.

          9                 In these schools we're a place for

         10  educators to come for materials, new curricula, to

         11  vent, support, for advice, opportunities,

         12  professional growth, to give them the daily support

         13  because we're there in the school, and I think we've

         14  heard that a number of times, as well.

         15                 We are there every day. We coach

         16  teachers, we visit their classrooms, we model good

         17  teaching, and share teaching strategies. We do offer

         18  workshops, but not like the workshops that we read

         19  about that the teachers don't like. These workshops

         20  are tailored based on what the students need and

         21  what the teachers need to know to learn, to be able

         22  to support the students needs. They are there in

         23  smaller classroom settings, it could be a setting

         24  with just two teachers working together, that is

         25  professional development, it's not being talked to,
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          2  and those are the type of opportunities we try to

          3  create.

          4                 Our approach to professional

          5  development starts with students, what they need to

          6  know and be able to do. We work with teachers that

          7  train them -- I hate that word "train" -- but to

          8  help them understand data. Not that a student is

          9  below, but to understand what the data means and

         10  what are the implications for classroom instruction.

         11  How to analyze, we don't learn those things in a

         12  preservice program.

         13                 I have a newsletter here that we have

         14  developed that we send out to all the schools, and

         15  we try to do it three or four times a year. It's

         16  about professional development, what we know works.

         17  And I'm not going to be able to explain it to you in

         18  five minutes, but this is my passion, and I'm so

         19  excited to hear it here as well.

         20                 Let me give one example. Many

         21  elementary school teachers lack the confidence to

         22  teach math, because they believe themselves are not

         23  good at it. But the data show it is a weak area for

         24  fourth graders, and we need to teach more of it and

         25  to teach it better.
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          2                 Now, sometimes some superintendents,

          3  some principals say if you follow the book it works

          4  - but that doesn't work. We need to teach teachers,

          5  help them, coach them, in how to develop the content

          6  and how to deliver to their students the proper

          7  instruction.

          8                 That means analyzing where students

          9  are having problems, it means examining curriculum

         10  and finding lessons that address these problems.

         11                 It means trying to teach concepts

         12  another way and another and another until each child

         13  in the classroom understands the concept and can

         14  solve the problems.

         15                 This is the kind of professional

         16  development we advocate. Personalize, customize,

         17  professional development, putting money into the

         18  mind and the quality of teacher, not into more

         19  programs. It's about helping teachers better

         20  understand and not just following the curriculum

         21  page by page by page.

         22                 Professional development must be

         23  embedded in teachers' daily work experience. You can

         24  attend all the workshops, take all the college

         25  courses you want, but until you actually have
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          2  students sitting in front of you, and you try to

          3  implement everything you've learned, you realize

          4  that you don't have it all, and that's where you

          5  begin to learn it better.

          6                 Courses, workshops in isolation will

          7  not change classroom practice.

          8                 Okay, I'm going to skip a lot. Okay,

          9  in schools where the culture embraces collaboration

         10  and the value of collegial support, the staff

         11  manages time to coach one another, to discuss with

         12  one another what works and what didn't and get

         13  suggestions from others about what to change.

         14                 Principals in those schools in form

         15  leadership, usually facilitate this kind of peer

         16  leading by providing common planning time and

         17  setting up study groups. But the system as a whole,

         18  I just say, puts more faith in programs than it does

         19  in people. If we buy the most expensive program, it

         20  will work. Well, I'm here a lot longer than both my

         21  colleagues, and I have seen programs come and go and

         22  we can spend all the money in programs, unless we

         23  put the money in the minds of educating our

         24  teachers, we're not going to get -- we're going to

         25  keep getting the same old things.
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          2                 This is not to say that we don't need

          3  good programs. But it does not build the teacher's

          4  capacity to take off from there, build on it, adapt

          5  for individual learning styles. That's because the

          6  teacher is not given the information necessary to

          7  know why she or he is doing something in a

          8  particular way, they're just told to do it, and they

          9  don't really understand why they're told to do it.

         10                 That is why the curriculum guides,

         11  and this is a plug for the union, we have curriculum

         12  guides, were written by teachers, for teachers, and

         13  they are about classroom practice.

         14                 Hopefully we can get a set to you if

         15  you haven't received them yet.

         16                 They are sample lesson plans, they

         17  offer reflections, explaining, thinking and

         18  teaching, and we believe that it is packaged. It's

         19  not a program package, it is something that our

         20  teachers will use to learn from.

         21                 Teachers will stay when they feel

         22  they are part of the community, when they feel they

         23  have some place to turn, and we have to stop

         24  treating schools like factories and teachers as

         25  interchangeable input units, and we just do need the
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          2  teachers' support. So, you could read it. So, you

          3  could read it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you

          5  very, very much. And if one of the Sergeant-At-Arms

          6  could pass around copies of that, that would be

          7  helpful.

          8                 I know that we held the vote open,

          9  Council Member Koppell would like to vote.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Oh, I'm sorry,

         12  and Council Member DeBlasio. I'm sorry.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: DeBlasio.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: I

         15  enthusiastically vote yes.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote stands at

         19  eight in the affirmative, zero in the negative and

         20  no abstentions.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         22                 We're now going to hear from Hector

         23  Calderon. Welcome. Thank you for being here. We

         24  appreciate it. You're the last of the panelists and

         25  then we will have questions. So, if you could state
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          2  your name for the record. The button has to be off

          3  for the microphone to be on, it's a little

          4  counter-intuitive. And if you could limit your

          5  remarks to five minutes, that would be very, very

          6  helpful.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 MR. CALDERON: I will do so. And I

          9  apologize for being late, but the daily life of a

         10  teacher sometimes renders those things.

         11                 So, basically I focused on the

         12  different levels of recruitment and retainment of

         13  strategies for teachers, and one of the things a

         14  long time ago I had in the class, a business class,

         15  something called Mastro's Hierarchy of Needs, and I

         16  think they really apply to the same idea for

         17  teachers, you know? And one of the things on the

         18  lower wrung of that ladder on "hierarchy of needs,"

         19  are basic needs for a lot of teachers, and those,

         20  you know, and those teachers usually include

         21  increase for salaries for all teachers and

         22  developing differentiated pay scales for expert

         23  teachers, and those who can take on specialized

         24  responsibilities.

         25                 We've seen the amazing dramatic
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          2  change in the opportunity for new teachers to come

          3  into the system, by simply having a teaching

          4  increase, a teachers' salary increase in pay, and I

          5  think it's been widely successful in terms of our

          6  teacher shortage.

          7                 Particularly in our school, at El

          8  Puente Academy, where I come from, even though all

          9  the time there wasn't really a teacher increase, we

         10  focused a lot on providing opportunities for those

         11  teachers who demonstrated leadership and who were

         12  willing to take different roles. To procession pay,

         13  we actually gave those teachers a lot of procession

         14  pay for their efforts and skills, so the teacher

         15  felt rewarded. So, that one basic level is just

         16  that, money and having resources available for those

         17  teachers, okay?

         18                 Another strategy that we have done in

         19  terms of recruiting new teachers is creating a high

         20  quality induction program for new teachers. To that

         21  end, we've worked with teachers' teaching colleges.

         22  We're located in El Puente, Williamsburg, and one of

         23  the schools that we're highly affiliated with is the

         24  Long Island University, Brooklyn Campus. And with

         25  that we've talked to them about constant needs that
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          2  they need to focus on with teachers and just in

          3  particular dealing with a population that we're in

          4  primarily in the City schools. And for us, creating

          5  those high quality induction programs for new

          6  teachers and give them the opportunity to get the

          7  kind of training they need and the skills that are

          8  needed to actually be successful in the classroom,

          9  okay?

         10                 Number three is adopt policies that

         11  include teachers in school-based decision-making. I

         12  heard the last speaker speaking to that end. For us,

         13  you know, the craft of teaching is a sacred act.

         14  When teachers walk into a classroom, they enter into

         15  a covenant with those students, and what that means

         16  in terms as a translate to being in schools, is that

         17  teachers have a great role in deciding what the life

         18  of the school is going to be like, and being viable.

         19                 Beyond the basic needs of salaries

         20  and opportunities in the school, they also want to

         21  have a say in how the school is run, and helping

         22  shape the vision for their schools, you know?

         23                 The other piece that's really become

         24  important for us is the ability to grow in teachers.

         25                 The school where I teach is a school
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          2  that focuses on peace and justice as a theme, and

          3  we've gone out of our way to really recruit from

          4  people, from circles we usually are part of, in

          5  terms of circles of people that are focusing on

          6  being very activist in different social issues. So,

          7  we've gone to a lot of those circles, you know,

          8  where there be, you know, the Puerto Rican Students

          9  Association or going into other social programs that

         10  we deal with, and looking at those people who

         11  traditionally would look at teaching as a

         12  profession, but pitching to them the opportunity

         13  that teaching can grow as a form of activism, and

         14  that's become very important for us.

         15                 Also, within the university that we

         16  work with, we have required those universities to

         17  develop teacher education programs that focus on

         18  training teachers with specific skills to deal in

         19  the inner-city, and we have found that beyond just

         20  curriculum and pedagogical skills, there's a certain

         21  level of commitment and training that's is necessary

         22  particularly to deal with inner-city youth, and to

         23  really understand them and their needs. We see

         24  ourselves an extension of the community, the school

         25  was created with that intention, we feel that the
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          2  teacher training program should focus on that and

          3  really create comprehensive programs.

          4                 Overall, the reduction of class size

          5  is very important for us. On a basic level is

          6  providing teachers with adequate space and supplies.

          7  Match the teachers with the philosophy of education

          8  of schools. And for us, like I said earlier, it's a

          9  school dedicated to peace and justice, and see our

         10  work as a form of activism. We have found that once

         11  the teachers are in their schools, the focus is on

         12  retainment, retainment, retainment. And for us, the

         13  way we do that is that for most of our teachers,

         14  beyond meeting their basic needs and their

         15  opportunity to grow within the school, is that they

         16  see the work that we're doing as something greater

         17  than simply teaching the students, but simply a

         18  start of a social mission that we are undertaking as

         19  part of our work.

         20                 And lastly, treating teachers as

         21  professionals, by trusting them and by hearing their

         22  voices and honoring who they are within the school.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you

         25  very, very much.
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          2                 We've been joined by Council Member

          3  David Yassky from Brooklyn.

          4                 There are a lot of questions. I

          5  wanted to begin, though, with the issue of mandated

          6  curricula. On the one hand I completely appreciate

          7  your point, and it speaks actually to Mr. Calderon's

          8  last point, you're not really treating a teacher as

          9  a professional if you're sort of proscribing every

         10  moment of their time. And when I have seen some of

         11  these prescriptive curriculum's in action, I, as an

         12  educator myself, I used to teach fifth grade, and as

         13  the mother of a four-year-old, it makes me very

         14  nervous. You know, just the regimented aspect of it

         15  does not sort of sit well with me. On the other

         16  hand, to be the devil's advocate, it does seem that

         17  in a large system, if you have people who are not

         18  able to be creative and initially, you know, what do

         19  you do in the interim, right? If you know that your

         20  kids need some level of phonics instruction, to take

         21  perhaps the obvious example, you know, doesn't a

         22  success for all at least keep sort of people on the

         23  same page? And to ask you to be managers, which some

         24  of you are in some ways, what is the proper balance

         25  I guess? Because presumably, you know, teachers want
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          2  a curriculum which could be construed as mandated,

          3  and that I would think everybody would agree is

          4  appropriate, you don't want to give the keys to the

          5  classroom and say, math, fourth grade math and leave

          6  it at that. And some teachers have complained that

          7  they've never seen a curriculum, which is kind of

          8  astounding.

          9                 But what is the proper balance

         10  between mandated curriculum and allowing teachers to

         11  be professionals? And perhaps we could begin with

         12  you, Mr. Simamora.

         13                 MR. SIMAMORA: Simamora.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Simamora.

         15                 MR. SIMAMORA: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Since you had

         17  brought the issue up, but others should feel free to

         18  jump in.

         19                 MR. SIMAMORA: I think it's very

         20  understandable that we provide a structure for new

         21  teachers, and having been a new teacher just two

         22  years ago, I would never have argued for being

         23  thrown into a classroom with no sort of curricular

         24  context to work with.

         25                 I think where the problem comes in is
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          2  that, for example, myself and a lot of my colleagues

          3  in District 9 are working in a situation where we're

          4  told what to teach, when to teach and how to teach

          5  it. And that's particularly frustrating, and I'll

          6  give you a personal example.

          7                 Recently I gave a math test on whole

          8  numbers and decimals, and usually because of all the

          9  high stakes test taking that's going on presently,

         10  my kids get very nervous. I mean they get nervous so

         11  much that they get sick to their stomach. And I

         12  didn't want them to sit with that nervousness for

         13  the remainder of the day. And, so, I wanted to teach

         14  math in the morning. However, because of the way

         15  that my day is scripted for me, I have to teach the

         16  golden reading hour, which is an hour and a half or

         17  two-hour time block where I teach reading and

         18  literacy skills. I have to teach that first thing in

         19  the morning, and then the silver math hour, which is

         20  an hour and a half of math instruction, comes

         21  afterwards. And it's a little disconcerting for a

         22  third-year teacher to worry about having your

         23  principal come in and, you know, reprimand you for

         24  making a decision that in your mind you thought was

         25  more judicious, more wise, for your own students.
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          2                 I think, Mr. Calderon, that's your

          3  name?

          4                 MR. CALDERON: Yes.

          5                 MR. SIMAMORA: I agree with Mr.

          6  Calderon. I think that there needs to be a context,

          7  a structure, but I think that school-based decisions

          8  need to have faculty input. I think that's very

          9  important.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Could I just

         11  ask a follow-up so I understand?

         12                 In other words, you were giving, were

         13  you giving a test on whole numbers and decimals?

         14                 MR. SIMAMORA: Yes. I was giving a

         15  teacher-created test on whole numbers and decimals.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: And did you

         17  ask, or could you have asked to switch? I mean, it

         18  seems like a personally reasonable and logical

         19  thing, that if the kids are particularly nervous,

         20  and you're presumably not asking to even switch

         21  every day. You're asking in this particular context.

         22  So, could you just elaborate, did you ask and were

         23  you turned down? Or is that something you were even

         24  inhibited from asking because there is such a

         25  regimented --
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          2                 MR. SIMAMORA: Because of the present

          3  atmosphere in my school, and I think in other

          4  schools in the district, I didn't feel comfortable

          5  asking. And, so, in some ways maybe I feel like I

          6  should have just closed the door and made a decision

          7  that I thought was wise for my kids. But as a

          8  third-year teacher, I still think I'm trying to

          9  learn the ropes of what's appropriate to do and not

         10  appropriate to do. And, so, therefore I didn't ask.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: And just to

         12  follow up so I understand; what is the theory

         13  behind, and you'll have to excuse my ignorance about

         14  sort of the structured nature of the day, what is

         15  the theory about why you do the golden hour, the

         16  silver -- am I getting gold, silver, there's a medal

         17  theme here?

         18                 MR. SIMAMORA: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I don't know

         20  if there's a brass or how far it goes down, but what

         21  is the theory behind having every kid -- are the

         22  kids moving so that if they go from your class to

         23  another class they'll be out of sync? Or what's the

         24  theory of having every fifth grade class have the

         25  same gold hour?
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          2                 MR. SIMAMORA: I teach fifth grade in

          3  an elementary school, so actually my fifth grade is

          4  self-contained, so there is no switching.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay.

          6                 MR. SIMAMORA: And I think -- I forget

          7  your name?

          8                 MS. GENTILE: Amimda.

          9                 MR. SIMAMORA: Aminda brought up a

         10  good point. In terms of the scripted day for me, I

         11  was never given the rationale as to why. And, so, it

         12  makes it very difficult for me as a teacher to feel

         13  invested in the day if I'm not exactly sure why.

         14                 Now, I totally agree that there are

         15  certain components that need to be addressed every

         16  day. For example, in my school during the golden

         17  reading hour, where we're asked to do a read aloud

         18  every day, we're asked to do guided reading every

         19  day, writing workshop every day, and these things

         20  are understandable. I think these things are

         21  literacy components that should be going on in every

         22  classroom. However, when it comes to scripting down

         23  to the amount of time that you can take on each

         24  component, I think it ignores the realities of the

         25  classroom. I think any new or seasoned teacher knows
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          2  that your children present to you such unique

          3  challenges, that there is no such thing as a

          4  one-size fits all curriculum.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Can any of the

          6  others talk about -- I mean, that's helpful because

          7  it obviously gets to the shared decision-making, and

          8  it also gets to the issue of respect. I mean, to

          9  give you a schedule to follow without even

         10  explaining what the theory is, seems quite absurd.

         11                 But if someone else can help flesh

         12  out this idea of what level of requirement is

         13  obnoxious and unhelpful, and what level would be

         14  helpful, knowing that you have teachers at such

         15  varied, you know, we often talk about students being

         16  at varied levels, we have the same problem with

         17  teachers, and the system is, whether it's at the

         18  school level or at central level, is trying to come

         19  up with a plan that, you know, supposedly is the

         20  greatest good for the greatest number, it doesn't

         21  always seem that way in practice.

         22                 So, I know since everyone seems to --

         23  I don't know if we want to go from, Aminda, do you

         24  want to start?

         25                 MS. GENTILE: I really would like to
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          2  speak to the issue of like a successful program.

          3                 I'm a reading teacher and I did go to

          4  see Success for All, and the others are just like

          5  that, prescribed, very scripted program, in a school

          6  system similar to ours in Florida, expecting to be

          7  horrified, and I was, because I like the way I

          8  teach. And that program didn't lend, wasn't going to

          9  lend itself to my particular style. But I held back

         10  on making my own opinions, and I spent some quality

         11  time with the teachers there. They liked it. And as

         12  you dig deeper and deeper and deeper, they liked it

         13  because it was working. And someone raised the

         14  question, I think in the previous panel, you said

         15  it, about success - when you get success, after

         16  awhile you buy into it a little bit more.

         17                 In our Chancellor's District schools,

         18  that shifted a number of years ago to successful, or

         19  they are successful, the problem is it's never meant

         20  to be the only thing forever and ever and ever. As

         21  the newer teachers or the senior teachers become

         22  comfortable with this, there needs to be

         23  opportunities for teams of teachers to meet, to have

         24  input, to make modifications as needed. So, that

         25  it's not about creativity, it's about really
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          2  understanding how anyone learns and understands

          3  reading.

          4                 Ramsey, and I will give this example,

          5  had a meeting with very, very angry teachers in one

          6  of our Brooklyn districts, and they were furious and

          7  screamed at her. I was horrified that they screamed,

          8  but they screamed and yelled, how dare she agree to

          9  the schools being involved in Success for All, and

         10  as my face is getting redder and redder, panicking

         11  what's going to happen, she very quietly used her

         12  wonderful lawyer skills and she asked them a series

         13  of questions.

         14                 Some of these wonderful teachers had

         15  been teaching for quite a number of years, there

         16  wasn't a change in their school. So, they were not

         17  using the data appropriately to provide appropriate

         18  instruction for their students. So, she said to

         19  them, so if you weren't successful, why aren't we

         20  willing to try something else?

         21                 So, my last comments are on the

         22  prescribed, it's okay if people know why they're

         23  doing it, and how and when modifications can be

         24  made. I never thought I would say that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.
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          2                 We're going to just stop for one

          3  moment because Council Member David Yassky would

          4  like to vote on the CFE resolution, and is one of

          5  the prime sponsors.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Yassky.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I vote aye.

          8  And Madam Chair, thank you very much for your

          9  indulgence. There's a hearing next door on the

         10  Committee on Mental Health, as you know, and I sit

         11  on that Committee, and I'm going to return to that.

         12  So, I'd appreciate your indulgence. Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Sure.

         15                 Can we hear from the two others?

         16                 MS. ORT: I think there are different

         17  answers to your question at different levels of

         18  schooling, in terms of the high school and the

         19  elementary school. I think that there's, it's

         20  important to make that distinction around the

         21  curricular package. So, I say that but then I'll

         22  generalize to the whole thing.

         23                 I think the curriculum package, like

         24  Success for All, is sort of one part of the whole

         25  approach to kind of professional development that a
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          2  district or a school takes, and it's important for

          3  that to be seen as just one part of the support for

          4  teaching.

          5                 I mean, I think a lot of what

          6  happens, a lot of teachers' frustration with

          7  something like Success for All is though it sort of

          8  provides an important floor for like the bottom of

          9  the barrel essentially, there's nowhere to go unless

         10  there's a larger sort of universe, professional

         11  development universe for teachers around it.

         12                 And I think in the City, a good model

         13  of successful professional development around a

         14  common set of ideas, like Success for All, is

         15  District 2, and its balance literacy.

         16                 I brought an article, because I'm

         17  always a teacher, I didn't know whether you would be

         18  interested in it, but it's from the Teachers'

         19  College record and it describes, it's basically an

         20  analysis of District 2's professional development

         21  approach, a very rich process of, you know,

         22  providing supports to teachers and a common language

         23  to how literacy is best achieved, and then there's

         24  all these supports, intervisitations among less

         25  successful or less experienced teachers and more
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          2  experience, and there's the principal as an

          3  instructional leader who really knows the program,

          4  which seems to be the issue in your school. The

          5  principal is not seeing himself or herself as

          6  someone who needs to explain a rationale for why

          7  teaching happens and the way it happens in a school.

          8  I mean, that's more of an issue than curriculum

          9  package yes or no. I don't know, other important

         10  supports are -- in District 2 they do this

         11  professional development lab where teachers can

         12  leave their classrooms and a master teacher do a

         13  particular phonics lesson, say, or a phonics unit,

         14  and then teachers can go and learn about it and

         15  transfer it into their own classroom. I mean, that's

         16  a rich way to have access to a shared set of ideas

         17  without it being like, you know, you say this and

         18  then you say this and then the kids say this and you

         19  say that. I mean, that's the kind of thing that

         20  teachers really resent, and that kind of demeans

         21  their professionalism.

         22                 I think it is tied to the whole idea

         23  of recruitment and quality of teaching, too. You

         24  know, if people felt more confident in the coherence

         25  of teacher education programs there wouldn't be as
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          2  much push towards these uniformed packages. But

          3  because teachers come from so many different places

          4  and through so many different routes, there's the

          5  sense that the coherence needs to come at the school

          6  level, and that is problematic.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Mr. Calderon.

          8                 MR. CALDERON: I'll speak as a teacher

          9  and as an administrator also.

         10                 I think the balance of the question

         11  you put forward between mandating versus do you

         12  leave it free-for-all so-to-speak and what's the

         13  accountability piece, it's just that accountability

         14  for teachers, I think that putting forth for every

         15  teacher these are the standards, your curriculum

         16  needs to be aligned with those standards, and you

         17  have the privilege of deciding how you're going to

         18  get there. And I think with privilege comes great

         19  responsibility, and I think for a lot of teachers

         20  being totally, their lives totally prescribed

         21  ignores the reality of the classroom, as Mr.

         22  Simamora was saying. And I think within my school,

         23  what we've done is that every classroom we develop a

         24  data stream basically --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I'm sorry, you
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          2  develop a?

          3                 MR. CALDERON: A data stream for the

          4  class. So every week teachers come together, every

          5  two weeks, the reading teachers -- we're a high

          6  school but we still have focus specialized on

          7  reading, we've come together and we say, okay, what

          8  does the data show us? We do our assessments about

          9  where students are at in terms of meeting what we

         10  call mastery targets, "mastery targets" being the

         11  benchmarks, if you will, that we're trying to get

         12  to.

         13                 And before we start the school year,

         14  everybody writes their mastery targets in every

         15  class, so we can clearly state what we want students

         16  to know and be able to do, okay?

         17                 And the question that would follow

         18  this, how do you know that they know it, right? So

         19  that's when assessments come in.

         20                 So, right away we write the mastery

         21  targets, we develop assessment tools that will tell

         22  us where the students are at in the context of those

         23  mastery targets, which are in line with the state

         24  requirements, and then we get data every week, every

         25  two weeks, about where our students are at.
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          2                 That allows the teacher to make

          3  informed decisions about what strategies they can

          4  use. By providing models, whether they be Success

          5  for All, or any of the curriculum they can pull and

          6  use as they need it for their students, they're

          7  being held accountable because they know they have

          8  to meet these mastery targets. You declare them, so

          9  they develop them based on those mastery targets,

         10  and from there I think the way to make sure that

         11  every teacher is accountable, that all students are

         12  learning, is are you meeting the goals you set

         13  forth? And it's a very public conversation, it's not

         14  a private conversation inside your classroom.

         15  Everybody knows.

         16                 So, if you're not meeting your

         17  mastery targets for your students, I can come in as

         18  an administrator and say, okay, let's try something

         19  else. You actually tried this, this didn't work,

         20  your students have mastered this, but they haven't

         21  mastered this. What other models and curriculum? But

         22  when your whole day is prescribed, it doesn't allow

         23  for a differentiation, it does not allow for the

         24  uniqueness of the school and for the students that

         25  are sitting before you. I think that's the balance,
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          2  accountability, and allowing things to be

          3  professional, and make the best decisions for their

          4  classrooms, but you're holding them accountable to

          5  meeting certain standards.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Did you want

          7  to add something?

          8                 MS. GENTILE: I just want to add a

          9  little bit.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Sure.

         11                 MS. GENTILE: Accountability is

         12  absolutely key, but I want to just give an example

         13  of middle school math, where we have a very bleak

         14  picture. Majority of our middle school math teachers

         15  are not certified math teachers, they're English

         16  teachers, social studies teachers, et cetera.

         17                 When we talk about literacy it's a

         18  little easier, because most of us read, write, but

         19  we talk about mathematics which really requires a

         20  deep content understanding, otherwise I have no way

         21  to pull from my being any instruction in

         22  mathematics, if I don't really understand the

         23  content.

         24                 So, when we talk, our middle school

         25  teachers beg for something very clean and concrete
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          2  for them to follow, where it falls short again is

          3  about, if you're not using that, along with these

          4  conversations, these opportunities for teachers to

          5  continue, all the teacher can say to a student is

          6  yes, you're right, or you're wrong, they can't do

          7  anything diagnostic because they don't really deeply

          8  understand the subject.

          9                 When we talk about literacy, it

         10  always sounds a little easier. Mathematics really

         11  really requires a deep skill and a deep

         12  understanding.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I guess, I

         14  mean this is enormously helpful. I think what is a

         15  little bit distressing is that in order to strike

         16  the balance that each of you have articulated

         17  requires not only teachers who want to be part of a

         18  community of learners, which I think is the easy

         19  part, because I think most teachers do, but requires

         20  enormous training and ability on the part of

         21  instructional leaders. So, this gets back to the

         22  problem if we have 1,200 principals and we don't

         23  have a co-director who has the kind of vision that

         24  you are -- you have a model not only in your head

         25  but you can articulate, in terms of what you want

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            113

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  your teachers to achieve, if we have, and I don't

          3  mean to pick on your school, but if we have a

          4  principal who is not articulating the rationale, and

          5  doesn't really know what the vision is and how to

          6  get there, then it seems very difficult to

          7  implement, and it seems as if mandated curriculums

          8  are a kind of band-aid or to that problem.

          9                 The other thing is, the statistics

         10  that I have looked at, and I have also tried to

         11  remain open minded to the kind of more regimented

         12  programs, seem at least so far to indicate that they

         13  can get kids from level one to level two but not

         14  beyond that, which is, you know, obviously we've got

         15  to go through level two before we get to level

         16  three, so that we may have a level of utility, but

         17  in addition to the complexities of how they make

         18  teachers feel, and sort of how teachers have to be

         19  open to changing and all that, they may just have

         20  inherent structural limits, in terms of moving kids

         21  to the appropriate level.

         22                 So, it's a quandary in terms of not

         23  only us as policy makers, but you know the way

         24  policy is made, no surprise to anyone here, is

         25  through resource allocation. So, that's in a way how
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          2  those decisions get made, and so the question we're

          3  always grappling with is on the issue of teacher

          4  retention, if this prescriptive curriculum is a

          5  factor, both from the point of view of retaining

          6  teachers, and also from the point of view of

          7  effectiveness of teaching children to learn, we're

          8  working in a very imperfect world. We don't always

          9  have instructional leaders who have the kind of

         10  vision you're talking about, and we have teachers

         11  coming in with a variety of interests, in terms of,

         12  I mean, all of you are passionate about being part

         13  of a community of learners, but I don't think that's

         14  universally the case. So, it becomes very tricky to

         15  figure out how do you do that with sort of your

         16  hands tied behind your back type of thing.

         17                 So, I just wanted to make that

         18  comment. Obviously, if you have further thoughts for

         19  us after you leave here on this question, and the

         20  question in the allocation of resources, as we write

         21  our report, in terms of what we should be doing, we

         22  would appreciate any reflections you have.

         23                 I wanted to switch gears a moment and

         24  ask a question that I guess may seem a little

         25  personal. But I wanted to ask the question about
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          2  either gender, or the issue of teachers and

          3  parenting. And this is an issue, being seven months

          4  pregnant that is near and dear to my own heart, and

          5  it's something that I've worked on on the Council. I

          6  am the author of the New York City Council's new

          7  parent paid leave. It was very amazing to me that

          8  the City Council staff members, even though we're

          9  constantly telling other people what policies they

         10  should have vis-a-vis domestic benefits, and parent

         11  leave we did not have, I discovered a pay parental

         12  leave policy and we do now. So, it's an issue that

         13  is important to me.

         14                 I wonder, as I understand it there

         15  isn't a paid maternity -- and by the way, our policy

         16  is specifically not gender specific, it's a new

         17  parent leave policy, it applies to both men and

         18  women, it applies to whether you adopt or have a

         19  child, although it's different. In other words, you

         20  have to say that you are the primary parental

         21  caretaker. So, I suppose if two employees, if you

         22  had a couple, only one of them, both in the City

         23  Council, only one of them could benefit at one time

         24  from the policy.

         25                 But I was wondering, since you had
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          2  brought up the issue, one of the reasons for people

          3  leaving the system, I guess I was wondering how much

          4  of an issue that was, either in terms of paid

          5  maternity/paternity leave, but also in terms of

          6  flexible working arrangements, it seems like that

          7  might be a factor, but I don't have any statistical

          8  evidence, I don't really know that much about it; is

          9  that an issue? Would that improve retention if we

         10  were able to devise a more family-friendly set of

         11  policies?

         12                 Perhaps Suzanne Ort, you can speak on

         13  that since you --

         14                 MS. ORT: Yes, I have definitely

         15  strong thoughts on this, having two young children

         16  of my own.

         17                 I think the reason that the system

         18  does lose a lot of women, particularly, and

         19  elementary schools are full of them, because of the

         20  child care issue, or the having children issue.

         21                 I don't know exactly what the Board's

         22  policy, of the Department's policy is on how long.

         23  There are some maternity benefits, I'm not sure

         24  exactly how long they're for and what they are,

         25  since I was already out of the system by the time I
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          2  had children. And the Board was very flexible in

          3  terms of giving you leave. So, it's not like the

          4  kind of thing that you lose your job.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: But they are

          6  prohibited from -- the federal law, the family and

          7  medical leave act prohibits --

          8                 MS. ORT: But in terms of like

          9  following up, like having like a six-month leave or

         10  a year leave to stay home with your kids the first

         11  year, that's, a lot of people do that. The bigger

         12  issue seems to be with coming back or wanting to

         13  have some kind of part-time arrangement.

         14                 It's very difficult to work in the

         15  system as a teacher, as a classroom teacher on a

         16  part-time basis. I mean, in the elementary school,

         17  the way that the school day is set up, it's almost

         18  impossible if you're a regular classroom teacher,

         19  because you have to be here every day.

         20                 In the high school where there is

         21  possibility for flexibility, there isn't either. I

         22  mean, there are some schools that teach on a two,

         23  three-day, two-day schedule where theoretically

         24  somebody could teach, you know, just Monday,

         25  Wednesday, Friday, and then Tuesday and Thursday be
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          2  home or something like that, there's a few schools

          3  that do that but there isn't a place in the system

          4  to accommodate people who would want to do that.

          5                 My understanding is that it's a UFT

          6  issue, that the UFT does not want to support -- the

          7  UFT is always afraid of having two part-time people

          8  replaced by a full-time person who receives

          9  benefits, that the Board has an incentive to go

         10  towards the part-time person for whom they don't

         11  have to pay the benefits, whereas, you know,

         12  protecting members, you are more inclined to protect

         13  the whole package. That's how it's been explained to

         14  me.

         15                 There is this F status thing that

         16  allows you to -- and I've worked on that before,

         17  that if you have a Board of Ed file number, and you

         18  have gone through the fingerprinting and you are

         19  part of the system, then you can work in the system

         20  on a per diem basis or on a, you know, any kind of

         21  basis and that's how you get paid. And, so, there is

         22  sort of a precedent where there could be more sort

         23  of part-time teachers brought in.

         24                 I have a huge crop of friends now who

         25  are teachers with me, and people who were students
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          2  with me at Teachers College who are now at home with

          3  their children and would prefer to work part-time

          4  and just can't enter the system.

          5                 I mean, what I do now is part-time,

          6  but I would not be able to return to a school to do

          7  what I do now and be through a school and be in the

          8  classroom. And I think that is a huge issue that

          9  could be addressed legislatively and as far as I

         10  know hasn't been attended to systematically at all.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: My

         12  understanding is that there is no paid leave for

         13  teachers. Anecdotally it's been a complaint that

         14  there isn't a maternity leave. I have found most

         15  unions actually to not argue this in their

         16  collective bargaining, it's not true of the UFT,

         17  obviously, that somehow the union leadership tends

         18  to be more male dominated, and so this is not

         19  something that is quite as pressing as it is for

         20  many women. Obviously one can't say that with the

         21  UFT, Randi is one of the great union leaders in the

         22  labor movement.

         23                 Does anyone else have any comment?

         24  Obviously I wouldn't want to focus too much on it,

         25  but I just wondered anecdotally whether it seemed to
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          2  be an issue.

          3                 MR. CALDERON: Well, for me, my wife

          4  and I met at the school. And at one point,

          5  particularly for our second son, we had to make a

          6  determination where, with our first son she came to

          7  school, it just happened where it was summertime so

          8  we had a couple of months off, but for our second

          9  son it didn't work out that way and she's home right

         10  now, and she wants to come back, but she also wants

         11  to be working part-time, she wants to be able to do

         12  that and it's very difficult under the present

         13  policy to do so because there is no paid leave. So,

         14  I'm working full time and she's staying home not

         15  working at all. I mean, working with the baby

         16  definitely.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Right.

         18                 Again, I don't want to belabor the

         19  point, I think it's something that I'd like to look

         20  into a little more to understand as an employer

         21  myself of my staff, I'm sympathetic to the dilemmas.

         22  It's not easy to accommodate part-time people, that

         23  creates upheaval, so I sort of understand

         24  management's perspective and reluctance. On the

         25  other hand, many corporations and many entities have
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          2  found a way to do flex time, and, you know, if we're

          3  going to preach family values, it seems like we have

          4  to accommodate the sort of different needs. And I

          5  wonder if with a little bit of a spotlight, DOE, and

          6  maybe even the UFT, could work together on something

          7  which was a little bit more, and maybe the high

          8  schools are an easier place to logistically make the

          9  arrangements, and maybe there's, I don't know,

         10  creative ways that we could go about making a more

         11  family friendly work environment, because it seems,

         12  you know, obvious that people who go into teaching

         13  have a love for children, so I would think there

         14  would be a higher level of families than maybe is in

         15  the population at large. So, thank you for that.

         16                 I want to see if my colleagues have

         17  questions or any comments?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Maybe Ms.

         19  Gentili would like to give some thoughts on what

         20  occurs to me, why is it that we're talking about the

         21  subject you were talking -- not this last subject,

         22  but the subject of how much should be prescribed in

         23  the curriculum and how much flexibility should be

         24  given to teachers, and so on, why are we talking

         25  about that in the Year 2002? Schools didn't just get
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          2  invented a couple of months ago or a couple of years

          3  ago, even general public education has been going on

          4  for quite some decades, maybe 100 years or so; why

          5  are we still talking about this?

          6                 MS. GENTILE: Well, obviously we

          7  haven't been very successful, so we constantly

          8  revisit.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Doesn't that

         10  occur to you as strange?

         11                 MS. GENTILE: As strange? I don't

         12  know.

         13                 But I think that our terminology, we

         14  may have to make some adjustments. There is limited

         15  curriculum in schools, which is different from SFA.

         16  SFA is a program to support, so there's two

         17  different things. I believe that you mentioned

         18  earlier, and I apologize I don't remember your name,

         19  if you have curriculum or curricular in each of the

         20  subject areas, and you set your goals and your

         21  assessments, and you have the skills to do it,

         22  that's one thing.

         23                 Right now our school system, and I

         24  don't know why, we have to talk to the school system

         25  to figure this out, our curricula is prescribed by

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            123

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  the textbooks we purchase, versus what we want

          3  children to know and be able to do.

          4                 There isn't a list of competencies

          5  and skills, or they may be in one school may have

          6  it, another school may not have it, it's we're

          7  driven by, do we buy Ginn, do we buy Miflin, do we

          8  buy SFA; they're prescribing what the curriculum is

          9  for the first grade, second grade and third grade,

         10  rather than these are the set of skills, these are

         11  the set of competencies that students need to know.

         12  Now, what materials? What tools will we use to move

         13  our students there?

         14                 One of the problems that I think we

         15  do have is because our teachers come in at all

         16  different levels of knowledge, the goal may be to

         17  make this more consolidated in a way, more

         18  consistent. So, that if I go from District 9,

         19  District 9 teachers can't go to District 2, if the

         20  way schooling is done is different, the books are

         21  different. District 2 teachers can't go to 9. Maybe

         22  we need to look at what should be done Citywide to

         23  make, not prescribe but to create some consistencies

         24  so that all the students in the City are getting a

         25  similar education.
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          2                 So, I did not answer your question. I

          3  do not know why. But I know that we are mistaken

          4  when we are talking about programs --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: You run a

          6  teacher center program.

          7                 MS. GENTILE: I do.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Were you a

          9  teacher yourself?

         10                 MS. GENTILE: Absolutely.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: When did you

         12  start?

         13                 MS. GENTILE: Do I have to tell you?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: More or less.

         15                 MS. GENTILE: I started about 30 years

         16  ago, and it was the same thing then.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Was it very

         18  different then?

         19                 MS. GENTILE: It's exactly the same.

         20  We had Bank Street Readers, Hutlin Miflin Math

         21  (phonetic) and that's what prescribes our work.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So, basically

         23  it was the people who create the textbooks --

         24                 MS. GENTILE: Or how they would

         25  develop it, but we were textbook driven.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, do you

          3  think it was better then --

          4                 MS. GENTILE: No, I don't. I happen to

          5  think that the system is in a much better shape

          6  today than it was. I think that there is a lot more

          7  conversations going on. I think the standards

          8  movement was phenomenal for New York City, it

          9  knocked everybody off its balance. And people

         10  started to move towards these conversations and that

         11  you described in your school, and you described in

         12  2, and they do take place. There are a lot of

         13  schools where there are a community of learners --

         14  there really, really are a lot more than we realize.

         15  It's just to sustain them; how do we sustain them?

         16  How do we provide this in classroom, in school

         17  support for teachers for all of us, because you

         18  never stop learning. The senior teachers needed to

         19  learn everything new again when we started the

         20  standards movement. You're never there, so how do

         21  you create a place where learning is appreciated and

         22  respected, and is part of your work. You're always

         23  learning and you're always doing something new.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I mean, it

         25  does seem to me that teachers 30 years ago were not
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          2  doing, though, ECLAS. Now, maybe they did it more

          3  intuitively, maybe they had the assessment

          4  strategies in their head, but I do think that

          5  there's a level of data drivenness. I mean, you're

          6  saying you're sitting down with your teachers every

          7  two weeks. I don't think that was done, and I wasn't

          8  around 30 years ago, but --

          9                 MS. GENTILE: That's what I'm saying,

         10  I think we're at a better place. I think that we

         11  have more, who are more opportunities to really

         12  learn using the data and how to provide instruction.

         13  Just there is no opportunity. What he prescribed is

         14  wonderful. Most schools do not operate that way.

         15  They're not looking at the data as a team to develop

         16  their instructional plan. It's there, it's just that

         17  we're not doing it, we're not using it well.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Well, I very

         19  much appreciate your time and your thoughts and if I

         20  can just reiterate, as we develop this report on

         21  teacher recruitment and retention, I hope we can

         22  call on your expertise. We sort of have an ambitious

         23  set of hearings scheduled that I'm responsible for,

         24  so I can't complain, but it requires us to be

         25  experts in areas that we're really not experts. So,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            127

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  we would like to continue to consult you, and

          3  particularly for the report for this hearing, share

          4  with you a draft of that and get your comments and

          5  feedback, so thank you very, very much for being

          6  here and this is the final day of a three part

          7  series of hearings on this topic. So, thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 MS. GENTILE: Thank you.

         10                 MR. CALDERON: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I call this

         12  hearing to a close.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 12:38 p.m.)
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